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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
($ in thousands, except per share data)

(Unaudited)
June 30,2021 December 31, 2020

ASSETS:
Mortgage-backed securities, at fair value
Pledged to counterparties $ 4,665,578% 3,719,906
Unpledged 5,661 6,989
Total mortgage -backed securities 4,671,239 3,726,895
Cash and cash equivalents 272,842 220,143
Restricted cash 106,876 79,363
Accrued interest receivable 12,547 9,721
Derivative assets 43,735 20,999
Receivable for securities sold, pledged to counterparties - 414
Other assets 688 516
Total Assets $ 5,107,927% 4,058,051

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:

Repurchase agreements $ 4,514,704% 3,595,586
Dividends payable 7,663 4,970

Derivative liabilities 16,769 33,227
Accrued interest payable 1,042 1,157
Due to affiliates 794 632

Other liabilities 13,134 7,188
Total Liabilities 4,554,106 3,642,760

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stock).®1par valuet00,000,0C¢hares authorized; no shares issued

and outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020 - -
Common Stock).81par values00,000,008hares authorizdd,7,500,013

shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 26178®ll3hares issued

and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 1,175 761
Additional paid-in capital 616,874 432,524
Accumulated deficit (64,228) (17,994)
Total Stockholders' Equity 553,821 415,291
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 5,107,927% 4,058,051

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Unaudited)
For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
($ in thousands, except per share data)

Six Months Ended June 30, Three Months Ended June 30,

2021 2020 2021 2020

Interest income $ 56,110 % 62,929 % 29,254 % 27,258
Interest expense (3,497) (21,002) (1,556) (4,479)
Net interest income 52,613 41,927 27,698 22,779
Realized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities (6,045) (25,020) 1,352 3,360
Unrealized (losses) gains on mortgage-backed securities (96,147) 37,272 (7,281) 34,240
Gains (losses) on derivative and other hedging instruments 10,557 (91,709) (34,915) (8,851)
Net portfolio (loss) income (39,022) (37,530) (13,146) 51,528
Expenses:

Management fees 3,413 2,645 1,792 1,268
Allocated overhead 799 695 395 348
Accrued incentive compensation 625 (275) 261 161
Directors' fees and liability insurance 595 508 323 248
Audit, legal and other professional fees 620 601 302 346
Direct REIT operating expenses 715 446 294 240
Other administrative 445 277 352 145
Total expenses 7,212 4,897 3,719 2,756
Net (loss) income $ (46,234% (42,427% (16,865% 48,772
Basic net (loss) income per share $ (0.50)% (0.65)% 0.17)% 0.74
Diluted net (loss) income per share $ (0.50)$ (0.65)$ 0.17)$ 0.73
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding 92,456,082 65,408,722 99,489,065 66,310,219
Dividends declared per common share $ 0.390 $ 0.405 $ 0.195 % 0.165

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(Unaudited)
For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
(in thousands)

Additional Retained

Common Stock Paid-in Earnings
Shares Par Value Capital (Deficit) Total
Balances, January 1, 2020 63,062 % 631 $ 414,998% (20,122% 395,507
Net loss - - - (91,199) (91,199)
Cash dividends declared - - (15,670) - (15,670)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net 3,171 31 19,416 - 19,447
Stock based awards and amortization 4 - 59 - 59
Balances, March 31, 2020 66,237 $ 662 $  418,803$ (111,321 308,144
Net income - - - 48,772 48,772
Cash dividends declared - - (10,935) - (10,935)
Stock based awards and amortization 4 - 55 - 55
Shares repurchased and retired (20) - (68) - (68)
Balances, June 30, 2020 66,221 $ 662 $  407,855% (62,5498 345,968
Balances, January 1, 2021 76,073 % 761 $ 432,524% (17,994% 415,291
Net loss - - - (29,369) (29,369)
Cash dividends declared - - (17,226) - (17,226)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net18,248 182 96,726 - 96,908
Stock based awards and amortization 90 1 571 - 572
Balances, March 31, 2021 94,411 % 944 $ 512,595% (47,363% 466,176
Net loss - - - (16,865) (16,865)
Cash dividends declared - - (20,416) - (20,416)
Issuance of common stock pursuant to public offerings, net23,087 231 124,515 - 124,746
Stock based awards and amortization 2 - 180 - 180
Balances, June 30, 2021 117,500$ 1,175 $ 616,874% (64,228 553,821

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLAND CAPITAL, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

($ in thousands)

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss (46,234% (42,427)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Stock based compensation 429 114
Realized and unrealized losses (gains) on mortgage-backed securities 102,192 (12,252)
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate swaptions (4,838) 5,090
Realized and unrealized gains on interest rate floors (1,384) -
Realized and unrealized (gains) losses on interest rate swaps (12,650) 64,357
Realized and unrealized losses on U.S. Treasury securities - 131
Realized losses on forward settling to-be-announced securities 5,389 5,244
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Accrued interest receivable (2,826) 2,163

Other assets 172) (580)

Accrued interest payable (115) (10,395)

Other liabilities (2,305) 671

Due to (from) affiliates 162 (53)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 38,648 12,063
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
From mortgage-backed securities investments:

Purchases (2,986,864) (1,985,756)

Sales 1,680,903 2,023,334

Principal repayments 259,425 260,834
Proceeds from U.S. Treasury securities - 139,712
Net payments on reverse repurchase agreements - (139,738)
Payments on net settlement of to-be-announced securities (3,077) (6,888)
Purchase of derivative financial instruments, net of margin cash received (14,369) (64,190)
NET CASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,063,982) 227,308
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from repurchase agreements 13,582,422 20,879,112
Principal payments on repurchase agreements (12,663,304) (21,152,479)
Cash dividends (34,927) (28,008)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net of issuance costs 221,654 19,447
Shares withheld from employee stock awards for payment of taxes (299) (68)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,105,546 (281,996)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH 80,212 (42,625)
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, beginning of the period 299,506 278,655
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH, end of the period 379,718% 236,030
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:

Interest 3,611 % 31,397

See Notes to Financial Statements



ORCHID ISLANDCAPITAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSEDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)
JUNE 30,2021

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organizationand BusinessDescription

Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (“Orchid” orthe “Company”),was incorporatedin Marylandon August17, 2010 for
andtAfaREHIRG 8 9 GERaYBE investment portfolio consisting of residentialmortgage-backedsecurities (“RMBS”).
FEQRUHSOZDOPBI@N Orchid wasa wholly ownedsubsidiary of Bimini CapitalManagement, Inc. (“Bimini”). Orchid
Reg@AMRET2UOPSTN (the date of commencementof operations). From incorporationthrough November24, 2010,
REChFS 98l common stockto Bimini.

On January 23, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “January 2020 Equity
threligHIBY iR Agrparaaaht #ithhich the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, upto an a2@@eREA000
aMmare8fdt the Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and
peaviatbidiegotintedompany issued a3d@Dgf23hares under the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for
gross proceedsagfproximatel $8million, and rRAYRAFEds of approxirhatdyilon, after commissions and fees,
its termination in August 2020. prior to

On August 4, 2020, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity
fourliglEb wiiemBgsersuant fonithich the Company could offer and sell, from time to time, upto an afj§620@e00f
3npE8tAfRe Company’s common stock in transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and
pevistiiorgotieCompany issued a2@tabsf65hares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for
gross proceedsagfproximatelyt0.0million, and rRAYRAREds of approxirhateyndlion, after commissions and fees,
its termination in June 2021. prior to

On January 20, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting
MorfaresBw’IHtikYith & :J.P. Morgan”), relating to the offer7aB@0sa@Siodres of the Company’s common stock.
Morgan purchased the shares of the Company’s common stock froffithe Company pursuantto the January
A%?ééﬁ@ﬂr%gﬂger share. In addition, the Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an
1,140,008hares 8fghisaddmpany’s common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan
21, 202 EXpeigfskiRJull eelome@ 0f008hares of the Company’s common stock occurred on January 25,
proceeds to the Company of approxidai#RfderViffet of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, Orchid entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting
relafiSGasraes biuitint R OHBNeshares of the Company’s common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares
Company’s common stock from tHef 6mpany pursuant to the March 2021 UnderwritiiglBogesheet & fddition,
Company granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to purchase up tolaacj6d&ivaes of the GBfhpany’s common
the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in full on Ma¥3¢8 09021. The closthgas,0shares
effei@&mpany’s common stock occurred on March 5, 2021, with proceeds to the CompangofCaifimximetely $
offering expenses.

On June 22, 2021, Orchid entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution
sale’RHgemsplrNithfasrwhich the Company may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an ag2Beg206 aatbunt
8hé&res of the Company’s common stock in transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and
privately negotiated
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transactions. Through June 30, 2021, the Company issug¢ra&@g@abbares under the June 2021 Equity
Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of appr@irtatidipi$ andPistiigieads of approxird@tétyilion, after
commissions and fees. Subsequent to June 30, 2021 and through July 30, 2021, the Comp&an$é€s06ehatesal of
under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds &f&afpithiximated, it proceeds
approximatel2& 2million, after commissions and fees. of

COVID-19 Impact

Beginningin mid—March 2020, the global pandemicassociated with the novelcoronavirus (“COVID-19")and
con&ﬂ@r@ﬂl@é‘@ﬁ'@%qmpactour financial position andresults ofoperations. As a resultof the economic,health and
BRgkebiHeaniipsoLEile Agency RMBS marketexperiencedsevere dislocations. This resultedin falling prices of

AHRpAIaIRMORCERRTBuUrchaseagreementlenders, resultingin material adverse effectson our resultsof
peREmiGms and to ourfinancial

The Agency RMBS marketlargely stabilizedafter the Federal Reserveannouncedon March 23,2020 thatit
RMPSEHPUIShaseA€@nsyin the amountsneeded to support smoothmarket functioning.As of June 30, 2021, we
hrvgitrealksatifirdalls market continuesto react tothe pandemicand the variousmeasures putin place to
stabilize dTaack@ton®fR)age marketsdo not respondfavorably toany of theseactions, orsuch actionsdo not
BingHesasrtygRestopetationsand financial condition maycontinue tobe materiallyadversely affected. Although
i fBBRABYSAAMGT gravity ofthe impactof the COVID-19pandemic atthis time, it may have a material adverse
elirapam{Neresults of future operations, financial position,and liquidityduring 2021.

Basis of Presentationand Use of Estimates

The accompanyingunaudited financial statements have been prepared inaccordance with accounting
in tH¥T0giRERESIBASSBAGeDIRA interim financial informationand with theinstructionsto Form 10-Qand Article 8
pacBa@ifiprBeltdo not includeall of theinformationand footnotesrequired by GAAP for complete financial
pialespententndine §aEABALs (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessaryfor a fair
pgseiiateadiaverbpgRiplugffthree monthperiod endedJune 30, 2021are not necessarilyindicative of the
esgdigthpionAetRar endingDecember 31,2021,

The balance sheet at December31, 2020 hasbeen derivedfrom the auditedfinancial statementsat that date
of thiirfeps A HEhdd® dthotes required by GAAP for complete financialstatements. For furtherinformation, refer
t4ReHBAREAN footnotesthereto includedin the Company’sAnnual Reporton Form 10-Kfor the yearended
December31, 2020.

The preparationof financialstatementsin conformitywith GAAP requires managementto make estimatesand
the pssomRtigmeiidsadiedsets andliabilities and disclosureof contingentassets and liabilities at the date of the
finansirademeiste st revenues andexpenses duringthe reportingperiod. Actualresults could differ fromthose
§§;}Hﬂ%@§té@ﬂﬁ1ates affecting theaccompanyingfinancial statementsare the fairvalues of RMBSand derivatives.
ManagpressBREENSSUMptionsunderlying the financial statementsare reasonablebased on theinformation
available asof June 30,2021.

Variable Interest Entities (“VIES”)

We obtain interests in VIEs through our investments in mortgage-backed securities. Our interests in
natdResR Y Hre AR BREEMRAN0 result in us obtaining a controlling financial interest inthese VIEs in the future.
cORSDIesi tMesEa/MPE and we account for our interest in these VIEs as mortgage-backed securities. See
Nfﬁﬂﬁaﬁ%rﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬂg our investments in mortgage-backed securities. Our maximum exposure to loss for
{hese MikrisdbedgRje/Mtked securities.



Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cashequivalentsinclude cashon depositwith financialinstitutionsand highlyliquid investments
thre®iicHiaEw st gt@eafme of purchase. Restricted cash includescash pledgedas collateralfor repurchase
BEFRSNISHES ARG RtBeEstrate swapsand other derivative instruments.

The followingtable providesa reconciliationof cash, cashequivalents,and restricted cash reportedwithin
posiisHRianem &f finairialof the same such amountsshown inthe statementof cash flows.

(in thousands)

June 30,2021 December 31,

Cash and cash equivalents $ 272,842$2020 220,143
Restricted cash 106,876 79,363
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash $ 379,718% 299,506

The Company maintains cashbalances atthree banksand excessmargin onaccount withtwo exchange
balaHealadyenters pubm@ginsured limits. The Companyhas not experiencedany lossesrelated tothese
brippseInEhrahede@porationinsures eligibleaccounts upto $250,000per depositorat each financialinstitution.
Baslhiciadtasihinsured, but are heldin separate customer accountsthat are segregatedfrom the generalfunds of
therpanieipaisudiigured balances toonly large, well-knownbanks and exchangeclearing membersand believes
Hint dighidteese sk on cash andcash equivalentsor restrictedcash balances.

Mortgage-BackedSecurities

The Companyinvests primarilyin mortgage pass-through (“PT") residentialmortgage backedcertificates
FanisRURFAEYIFRAFie MR (‘RMBS”), collateralized mortgage obligations(“CMOs”), interest-only (“lO”) securities
pNdiyiseinesrSHe8WNting interest in or obligations backed by pools of RMBS. We refer to RMBS and CMOs
&5 IBTaRYIBS JAuFRIES as structured RMBS. The Company has elected to account for itsinvestment in RMBS
gptlen tradeiingpibe fair value option requires the Company to record changes in fair value in the statement of
RRGEEBRTMUGRIR more appropriately reflects the results of our operations for a particular reporting period
BnedpERRSEIeROMIES thed how the portfolio is managed.

The Companyrecords RMBStransactionson the trade date. Securitypurchases thathave notsettled asof the
are hlaRrasRaakedRIBBS balance withan offsetting liability recorded,whereas securitiessold thathave not settled
datefdhe Ralabesoshifitthe RMBSbalance withan offsettingreceivable recorded.

Fair valueis defined as the pricethat wouldbe receivedto sell the asset or paidto transferthe liabilityin an
betWEder EARSRIEBIpants at the measurementdate. The fair valuemeasurementassumes thatthe transaction
tPapRIhBRIMIRY eitheroccurs inthe principalmarket forthe asset orliability, or inthe absenceof a principal
BHiAtagebursRefithe asset orliability. Estimatedfair valuesfor RMBS are based on independentpricing
BROKER SRDH WHEHP AR Iable.

Income on PTRMBS securitiesis based onthe statedinterest rate of the security. Premiums ordiscounts
purdGSE At 1B A ALed. Premium lostand discountaccretionresulting frommonthly principalrepayments are
tRiiestedé3e8)@RIROMBS inthe statementsof operations. For |0 securities, the incomeis accruedbased on the
eFEYING VadUe ameé ieference between incomeaccrued andthe interestreceived onthe securityis characterized
ARG SEIVER Y IR asset’s carrying value. At each reportingdate, the effective yieldis adjusted prospectively
furfotigBaeRArtAthe new estimate of prepaymentsand the contractualterms of the security. For IO securities,

pitesiive ol ROh NSRS 0 take into accountthe index valueapplicableto the security. Changes infair value of

RMBS duringeach
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report.ing p_eriod are recordegl inearnings andreported asunrealized gains or losseson mortgage-backed
seaertiesiidhepreaasanying

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

The Companyuses derivativeand otherhedging instrumentsto manage interest raterisk, facilitate
marfsgedinbHExpatreEanndt may continue todo so in thefuture. The principal instrumentsthat the Company
hasadseyl iRAateTakte”), Fed Funds and Eurodollarfutures contracts,short positionsin U.S. Treasurysecurities,
Bpaces fetafweEiPSinterestrate swaps (“interestrate swaptions”)and “to-be-announced”(“TBA") securities
trriysaatiEsd diHee dePivia®and other hedging instrumentsin the future.

The Companyaccounts for TBA securitiesas derivativeinstruments. Gains and lossesassociatedwith TBA
are $eEUFHESArgaRRABRBFoN derivativeinstrumentsin the accompanyingstatements of operations.

Deriyative and otherh_edging instrumentsare carriedat fair value,and changesin fair valueare recordedin
The@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ’%@@ﬁk}ﬁﬁf%ancialinstruments are not designatedas hedge accountingrelationships, but rather
AERIYES GABLEBRMIINFassets and liabilities.

Holding derivativescreates exposureto creditrisk relatedto the potentialfor failure on the partof
hon6P R EGHieHANShexchaitgesi@ntof defaultby a counterparty,the Companymay have difficultyrecoveringits
Follaiasaprhamypielided forunder theterms of theagreement. The Company’sderivative agreements require it
toIRAstAItteAtiNRate such risk. In addition,the Company uses only registered central clearingexchanges andwell-
Béﬁ@%’é@ﬂﬁﬁﬁ&%@@l&monitors positionswith individualcounterpartiesand adjusts posted collateralas
required.

Financial Instruments

The fair value of financialinstrumentsfor whichit is practicableto estimatethat valueis disclosedeither inthe
statéﬁ%gﬂﬁﬁiﬂ%‘ﬁt‘"ﬁompanying notes. RMBS, Eurodollar, Fed Fundsand T-Note futures contracts,interest
s puERsaiiersgidéeuritiesare accountedfor at fairvalue in thebalance sheets. The methodsand
GaRTBHESESRR tRRiRiRIgifesentedin Note 12 of the financialstatements.

The estimatedfair value of cash andcash equivalents,restricted cash, accruedinterest receivable,
othdPEeRARIRIRE ReGHiRESHEburchase agreements, payable forunsettled securitiespurchased, accrued
infBRrDgrABIRRNESPIEkiMatestheir carryingvalues as of June 30,2021 and December31, 2020 dueto the
shardarmmeaiueatiese

Repurchase Agreements

The Companyfinances the acquisition of the majorityof its RMBSthrough the use of repurchase
rep@@ﬁ@é@@@f&%@ﬂﬁ’@ﬂitﬁ!ﬁé@ﬂrchase agreementsare accountedfor as collateralizedfinancing transactions,
vanenanggamiedmthieiludingaccrued interest,as specifiedin the respectiveagreements.

Reverse RepurchaseAgreements and Obligationsto Return SecuritiesBorrowed underReverse
RepurchaseAgreements

The Companyborrows securitiesto cover shortsales of U.S. Treasury securitiesthrough reverserepurchase
madtanrastinitidedertents. We account forthese as securitiesborrowingtransactionsand recognizean
pbligitien se catitiesBefair valueon the balancesheet basedon the valueof the underlyingborrowed securities as

ohihesepntigdEaived as collateralin connectionwith our reverserepurchase agreements mitigate ourcredit
riskexposure to
8



counterparties.Our reverse repurchase agreementstypically have maturitiesof 30 daysor less.
Manager Compensation

The Companyis externallymanaged byBimini Advisors,LLC (the “Manager” or “Bimini Advisors”),a
confanyantlimR lsbHgd subsidiary of Bimini. The Company’s managementagreementwith the Manager
MaMERsTor aaIRYéMEe fee and reimbursementof certain operating expenses, whichare accruedand
frrensesiingdhfrrRIIAdG red. Refer to Note 13 forthe terms ofthe managementagreement.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earningsper share (“EPS”) is calculated as net incomeor loss attributableto common stockholders
avefiye e MpdeNeHaRéa®df common stockoutstandingor subscribedduring the period. Diluted EPS is
splenlatadisngdbmERRRNs applicable, for commonstock equivalents, if any. However, the common stock
ROCHAIANIAGR MRIdMhEIRGhe resultis anti-dilutive.

Income Taxes

Orchid has qualified and elected to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) underthe Internal
as dRRVENE @RI IIBOREITs are generally not subject to federal income tax on their REIT taxable income
arewiget thatibrYstockholders at least 90% of their REIT taxable income on an annual basis. In addition, a
plelAsiBHst snaes ehee to retain its tax status.

Orchid assesses the likelihood, based on their technical merit, that uncertain tax positionswill be sustained
basEBUheKaTHREIUrcumstances and information available at the end of each period. All of Orchid’s tax
RRflipBE B CatREAsIEEARACcrual for any tax, interest or penalties related to Orchid’s tax position assessment.
uhBerfaRREAKYIBSIEbAE is adjusted when new information is available, orwhen an event occurs that requires a
change.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2R2@eehte Rate Reform (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of
Reform on Financial Repdrtik@U 2020-04 pf3efaessstiBae expedients and exceptions to GAAP requirements
on debt instruments, leasé@! MEGERRIENAN other contracts, related to the expected markettransition from the
bmeden F@é@éb(aﬂiBOR"), and certain other floating rate benchmark indices, or collectively, IBORs, to alternative
referroge)erefalydnsiders contract modifications related to reference rate reform tobe an event that does not
FeRtHER GREWIaAE at the modification date nor a reassessment of a previous accounting determination. The
gpifRa AN 2448 over time, through December 31, 2022, as reference rate reform activities occur.
BEReGEMRARNIIRM M¥tthis ASU will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01 “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848). ASU 2021-01
g4ga¥rABRRIthaIsaABetef Aefvatives and give market participants the ability to apply certainaspects of the
reaYadsredHirRiieRFWlents to derivative contracts affected by the discounting transition. In addition, ASU
#ABPE@dE5n guidance to permit a company to apply certain optional expedientsto modifications of interest
ratedifliayeaiveedrighg or contract price alignment of certain derivatives as a resultof reference rate reform
BIHRAE 2 RPEFEHREEUS account for a derivative contract modified as a continuation ofthe existing contract and
tree0HnHg Weddecertain critical terms of a hedging relationship change to modifications made as part of the
giseawang Kasition1Ideis effective immediately and available generally through December 31, 2022, as

ERigIRREEJ& AT efAECompany does not believe the adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on its
financial statements.
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NOTE 2. MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES

The followingtable presentsthe Company’sRMBS portfolioas of June 30, 2021 and

December 31,2020:

(in thousands)

June 30, 2021

December 31,

Pass-Through RMBS Certificates:

2020

Fixed-rate Mortgages 4,574,539% 3,560,746

Fixed-rate CMOs - 137,453

Total Pass-Through Certificates 4,574,539 3,698,199
Structured RMBS Certificates:

Interest-Only Securities 92,709 28,696

Inverse Interest-Only Securities 3,991 -

Total Structured RMBS Certificates 96,700 28,696
Total 4,671,239% 3,726,895

NOTE 3. REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

The Company pledges certainof its RMBS as collateralunder repurchaseagreementswith financial

genéliliRBEBBYE BriPRSAMngrates correspondingto the termsof the borrowings,and interestis generally
el IetRENalARIof the pledged securitiesdeclines, lenders willtypically requirethe Companyto post
addifi mtenlipigsadaerastablishagreed upon collateral requirements, referred toas "margincalls.” Similarly, if the
Edevinitiesahtheadeddediders mayrelease collateralback to the Company. As of June30, 2021, the Company had

ragLitmaras call

As of June 30, 2021 andDecember 31,2020, the Company’s repurchaseagreementshad remaining

beldWaturitiesas summarized

(% in thousands)

OVERNIGHT BETWEEN 2 BETWEEN 31 GREATER

(1 DAY OR AND AND THAN
LESS) 30 DAYS 90 DAYS 90 DAYS TOTAL

June 30, 2021
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ 105,929% 2,988,154% 1,558,174% 25,814% 4,678,071
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ 101,075% 2,882,437¢ 1,506,293% 24,899 % 4,514,704
Net weighted average borrowing rate 0.14% 0.13% 0.13% 0.15% 0.13%
December 31, 2020
Fair market value of securities pledged, including

accrued interest receivable $ - $ 2112969 1,560,798% 55,776 $ 3,729,543
Repurchase agreement liabilities associated with

these securities $ - $ 2,047,897 1,494,500% 53,189 % 3,595,586
Net weighted average borrowing rate - 0.23% 0.22% 0.30% 0.23%

In addition, cash pledged to counterparties for repurchase agreements was7gppmuHioratelglB.8million as of

June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively.

If, duringthe term ofa repurchase agreement, a lender filesfor bankruptcy, the Company might experience
pledljig\dbs 6e£MeIEALEUID result inan unsecured claim againstthe lenderfor the differencebetween theamount
INa8eskis dRedaeMP B counterpartyand the fairvalue of the collateral pledged tosuch lender, including the

accrued interest receivable 10



and cash posted by the Company as collateral. At June 30, 2021,the Companyhad an aggregateamount atrisk
{HediftRigneahedveaRe Company, includinginterest payableand securitiesposted by the counterparty (if any),
%Qﬁﬁ‘e@gﬂé%@sﬂfpledged(if any), including accruedintereston such securities)with all counterpar@dg&oimillion.
FRRro¥Mptalydid not havean amountat risk withany individualcounterpartythat was greaterthan 10% ofthe

SOMRRNYSRAYEYAhBENS 1, 2020.

NOTE 4. DERIVATIVE AND OTHER HEDGING INSTRUMENTS

The Fab_le pelow summarizesfair value informationabout our derivative and other hedging instrumentsassets
30, a0d ialiitosesrabdrne, 2020.

(in thousands)

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location June 30, 2021 December 31,
Assets 2020

Interest rate swaps Derivative assets, at fair value $ 14,263 $ 7
Payer swaptions (long positions) Derivative assets, at fair value 26,282 17,433
Interest rate floors Derivative assets, at fair value 2,315 -
TBA securities Derivative assets, at fair value 875 3,559
Total derivative assets, at fair value $ 43,735% 20,999
Liabilities

Interest rate swaps Derivative liabilities, at fair valug 6,411 % 24,711
Payer swaptions (short positions) Derivative liabilities, at fair value 10,358 7,730
TBA securities Derivative liabilities, at fair value - 786
Total derivative liabilities, at fair value $ 16,769 % 33,227

Margin Balances Posted to (from) Counterparties

Futures contracts Restricted cash $ 2,548 $ 489
TBA securities Restricted cash - 284
TBA securities Other liabilities (773) (2,520)
Interest rate swaption contracts Restricted cash 1,115 -
Interest rate swaption contracts Other liabilities (11,414) (3,563)
Interest rate swap contracts Restricted cash 24,140 19,761
Total margin balances on derivative contracts $ 15,616 % 14,451

Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futuresare cash settledfutures contractson an interestrate, withgains and
chalgsserareslitashbany’s cash accountson a daily basis. Aminimum balance,or “margin”,is requiredto be
BaHIAinasis i aabRIHEIdW presentinformationrelated tothe Company’s Eurodollarand T-Note futures
PRetfseRrBIN®2E, 2021and

(% in thousands)

June 30, 2021

Average Weighted Weighted
Contract Average Average
Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equit{)
Eurodollar Futures Contracts (Short Positions)
2021 $ 50,000 1.00% 0.17% $ (207)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short P@sitions)
September 2021 5-year T-Note futures
(Sep 2021 - Sep 2026 Hedge Period) $ 269,000 1.08% 1.16% $ 788
September 2021 10-year Ultra futures
(Sep 2021 - Sep 2031 Hedge Period) $ 23,500 1.19% 1.02% $ (608)
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(% in thousands)

December 31, 2020

Average Weighted Weighted

Contract Average Average

Notional Entry Effective Open
Expiration Year Amount Rate Rate Equit)
Eurodollar Futures Contracts (Short Positions)
2021 $ 50,000 1.03% 0.18% $ (424)
Treasury Note Futures Contracts (Short Pbsition)
March 2021 5 year T-Note futures

(Mar 2021 - Mar 2026 Hedge Period) $ 69,000 0.72% 0.67% $ (186)

(1) Open equity represents the cumulative gains (losses) recorded on open futures positions from inception.

(2) 5-Year T-Note futures contracts were valued at al@3cé3f $une 30, 2021 ad@& 16t December 31, 2020. The contract
the short positions wed@250million and8¥.1million at June 30, 2021 and DecembeY&uessdo, respectively. 10-Year Ultra
were valued at a priceldi72@t June 30, JoRIeFIROBHARICt value of the short possdoBrviliisr$at June 30, 2021.

Under ourinterest rate swap agreements,we typicallypay a fixedrate and receivea floatingrate basedon
ThelABRARJ ray QfeWe@Sve under our swap agreementshas the effectof offsettingthe repricingcharacteristicsof
aYFeemerhkAER cash flows on such liabilities. We are typicallyrequired topost collateralon our interestrate swap
BEISRPRIYENTSIRfHAIRtion related tothe Company’sinterest rate swap positionsat June 30,2021 and December
31, 2020.

(% in thousands)

Average Net
Fixed Average Estimated Average
Notional Pay Receive Fair Maturity
Amount Rate Rate Value (Years)
June 30, 2021
Expiration > 3 to < 5 years $ 955,000 0.64% 0.16% $ 8,134 4.5
Expiration > 5 years 400,000 1.16% 0.13% (282) 7.8
$ 1,355,000 0.79% 0.15% $ 7,852 5.5
December 31, 2020
Expiration > 3 to <5 years $ 620,000 1.29% 0.22% $ (23,760) 3.6
Expiration > 5 years 200,000 0.67% 0.23% (944) 6.4
$ 820,000 1.14% 0.23% $ (24,704) 4.3

The table below presentsinformationrelated tothe Company’sinterest rate floor
positionsat June 30,2021.

(% in thousands)

Net
Strike Estimated
Notional Swap Curve Fair
Expiration Amount Cost Rate Spread Value
February 3, 2023 $ 70,000 $ 511 0.76%  30Y5Y $ 1,146
February 3, 2023 80,000 504 1.10%  10Y2Y 1,169
$ 150,000 $ 1,015 0.94% 2,315

The table below presentsinformationrelated tothe Company’sinterest rate swaption positionsaDecember
202dune 30,2021 and 31,

(% in thousands)

Option Underlying
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Weighted Average Weighted

Average Average Adjustable Average
Fair Months to Notional Fixed Rate Term
Expiration Cost Value Expiration Amount Rate (LIBOR) (Years)
June 30, 2021
Payer Swaptions - long
< 1year $ 4,000 $ 1,959 9.2 $ 400,000 1.66% 3 Month 5.0
>1 year < 2 years 25,390 24,323 19.1 1,027,200 2.20% 3 Month 15.0
$ 29390$% 26,282 16.3 $ 1,427,200 2.05% 3 Month 12.2

Payer Swaptions - short

<1 year $ (13,400% (10,358) 7.8 $ (1,182,850) 2.10% 3 Month 11.6
December 31, 2020
Payer Swaptions - long

< 1year $ 3,450 $ 5 2.5 $ 500,000 0.95% 3 Month 4.0
>1 year < 2 years 13,410 17,428 17.4 675,000 1.49% 3 Month 12.8
$ 16,860$ 17,433 11.0 $ 1,175,000 1.26% 3 Month 9.0

Payer Swaptions - short
< 1year $ (4,660% (7,730) 5.4 $ (507,700) 1.49% 3 Month 12.8

The following table summarizes our contracts to purchase and sell TBA securities as of June 30, 2021
and December 31, 2020

(% in thousands)

Notional Net
Amount Cost Market Carrying
Long (Shof¥) Basi® Valué) Valué)
June 30, 2021
30-Year TBA securities:

3.0% $ (400,000% (417,750% (416,875% 875
Total $ (400,000% (417,750% (416,875% 875
December 31, 2020
30-Year TBA securities:

2.0% $ 465,000% 479,531% 483,090% 3,559

3.0% (328,000) (342,896) (343,682) (786)
Total $ 137,000% 136,635% 139,408$ 2,773

(1) Notional amount represents the par value (or principal balance) of the underlying Agency RMBS.

(2) Cost basis represents the forward price to be paid (received) for the underlying Agency RMBS.

(3) Market value represents the current market value of the TBA securities (or of the underlying Agency RMBS) as of

(4) p=tcdreyidg value represents the difference between the market value and the cost basis of the TBA securities as of
prederivetideaassistsefiiatifities) at fair value in our balance sheets.

Gain (Loss) From Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments, Net

The table below presents the effect of the Company’s derivative and other hedging instruments
opevatihesstateheesits arfid three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30, Three Months Ended June

2021 2020 302021 2020
Eurodollar futures contracts (short positions) $ s (8,318 (219)% (101)
T-Note futures contracts (short position) 285 (4,724) (2,191) (385)
Interest rate swaps 9,446 (68,202) (17,677) (7,579)
Payer swaptions (short positions) 1,212 (889) 27,379 (889)
Payer swaptions (long positions) 3,710 (4,201) (36,360) (1,612)
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Interest rate floors 1,300 - (84) -
TBA securities (short positions) 3,170 (6,377) (5,963) 713
TBA securities (long positions) (8,559) 1,133 - 1,133
U.S. Treasury securities (short positions) - (131) - (131)
Total $ 10,557 $ (91,709% (34,915% (8,851)

Credit Risk-Related Contingent Features

The use of derivatives and other hedging instruments creates exposure to credit risk relating to
couitsntiat tegsiesdhiatthe event that the counterparties to these instruments fail to perform their
obligatttmsMedeinih@ze this risk by limiting our counterparties for instruments which are not centrally
ebazradgenta negjistéieancial institutions with acceptable credit ratings and monitoring positions with
indhdditiainG ausnterpatieesequired to pledge assets as collateral for our derivatives, whose amounts vary
theentarikebaakepnotional amount and remaining term of the derivative contract. In the event of a
defandtybyc ceaiterpasiyhents provided for under the terms of our derivative agreements, and may
bavassiisutte dbtairsagollateral for our derivatives. The cash and cash equivalents pledged as
ruitatenahtsraveridelisil/an restricted cash on our balaiiicis ghe&empany's policy not to offset assets
liabilities associated with open derivative contracts. Hoaeder, the Chicago Mercantile Exchange
V& Mdh negyoh tnacsézizeas settlement payments, as opposed to adjustments to collateral. As a result,
dadvathibtiessassociated with centrally cleared derivatives for which the CME serves as the central
pleskngeladty iitkese derivatives had been settled as of the reporting date.

NOTE 5. PLEDGED ASSETS

Assets Pledgedto Counterparties

The table below summarizesour assetspledged as collateralunder ourrepurchase agreementsand
incldgnypsveasiespleiiayrdiarRdto securitiessold but notyet settled, as of June 30, 2021 and December 31,

2020.

(in thousands)

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Repurchase Derivative

Repurchase Derivative

Assets Pledged to Counterparties Agreements Agreements  Total Agreements Agreements  Total

PT RMBS - fair value $ 4,570,053% - $ 4,570,053 $ 3,692,811% - $ 3,692,811
Structured RMBS - fair value 95,525 - 95,525 27,095 - 27,095
Accrued interest on pledged securities 12,493 - 12,493 9,636 - 9,636
Restricted cash 79,073 27,803 106,876 58,829 20,534 79,363
Total $ 4,757,144% 27,803% 4,784,947 $ 3,788,371% 20,534 % 3,808,905

Assets Pledgedfrom Counterparties

The table below summarizesassets pledgedto us fromcounterpartiesunder ourrepurchase
agréSieaTeais) IRMaaVEeRYFebafts as of June 30, 2021 and December 31,2020.

(in thousands)

June 30, 2021

December 31, 2020

Repurchase Derivative

Assets Pledged to Orchid AgreementsAgreements

Total

Repurchase Derivative

AgreementsAgreements  Total

Cash $ - % 12,187 %

14
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U.S. Treasury securities - fair value - - - 253 - 253
Total $ - $ 12,187 % 12,187$ $ 373 $ 6,083 $ 6,456

RMBS and U.S. Treasury securitiesreceived as margin underour repurchaseagreementsare not recordedin
becHisbaEasEASAIrty retains ownershipof the security. U.S. Treasury securities received fromcounterparties
ps/eplatespliioHgs@areements are recognizedas obligationsto return securities borrowed under reverse
FRIHFcRaseRATeIBe T ENBB as margin isrecognized as cash andcash equivalentswith a corresponding
RIS acRgizeaselyreements or other liabilitiesin the balancesheets.

NOTE 6. OFFSETTING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The Company’'sderivative agreementsand repurchaseagreementsand reverserepurchase agreementsare

agrétbiestiusAdadtednetting or similar arrangements,which providefor the rightof offset inthe eventof

Bafliptdpcheigie i@ty to thetransactions. The Companyreports itsassets and liabilities subject tothese
BEgiBgementson a gross

Th(_a followingtable presentsinformationregarding those assetsand liabilitiessubject tosuch arrangements
preséniieh EPoPRRNERHasis asof June 30,2021 and December31, 2020.

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Assets

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount Offset in the Balance Sheet
of Assets Financial

Gross Amoun6Gross Amount Presented Instruments Cash
of Recognized Offset in the in the Received as Received as Net
Assets Balance SheeBalance Sheet Collateral Collateral Amount
June 30, 2021
Interest rate swaps $ 14,263 % - $ 14,263% - $ - $ 14,263
Interest rate swaptions 26,282 - 26,282 - (11,414) 14,868
Interest rate floors 2,315 - 2,315 - - 2,315
TBA securities 875 - 875 - (773) 102
$ 43,735% -3 43,735% -3 (12,187% 31,548
December 31, 2020
Interest rate swaps $ 7% -$ 7% -$ - $ 7
Interest rate swaptions 17,433 - 17,433 - (3,563) 13,870
TBA securities 3,559 - 3,559 - (2,520) 1,039
$ 20,999 % -9 20,999 $ -9 (6,083% 14,916

(in thousands)

Offsetting of Liabilities

Gross Amount Not
Net Amount Offset in the Balance Sheet
of Liabilities Financial
Gross AmounGross Amount Presented Instruments
of Recognized Offset in the in the Posted as Cash Posted Net
Liabilities Balance SheeBalance Sheet Collateral as Collateral Amount

June 30, 2021

Repurchase Agreements $ 4,514,704% - $ 4,514,704% (4,435,631% (79,0738 -

Interest rate swaps 6,411 - 6,411 - (6,411) -

Interest rate swaptions 10,358 - 10,358 - (1,115) 9,243
$ 4,531,473% - $ 4,531,473% (4,435,631% (86,599% 9,243

December 31, 2020
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Repurchase Agreements $ 3,595,586% - $ 3,595586% (3,536,757 (58,829% -

Interest rate swaps 24,711 - 24,711 - (19,761) 4,950
Interest rate swaptions 7,730 - 7,730 - - 7,730
TBA securities 786 - 786 - (284) 502

$ 3,628,813% - $ 3,628,813% (3,536,757 (78,874% 13,182

The amountsdisclosed forcollateralreceived by or postedto the same counterparty up to andnot exceeding
ass&® NRARIMPPrEséHHed in the balancesheets. The fair valueof the actualcollateral received byor postedto the
samangwxeseadihe amountspresented. See Note5 for a discussionof collateralposted orreceived againstor for
ERRHEERRRBIGRIIBASer hedging instruments.

NOTE 7. CAPITAL STOCK

Common Stocklssuances

During the six month_sended_ June 30, 2021 andthe year endedDecember 31,2020, the Company
offefipgPistsiihesiolpwinshmdiestock.

(% in thousands, except per share amounts)

Weighted
Average
Price

Received Net
Type of Offering Period Per Sharg Shares Proceeds
2021
At the Market Offering Program First Quarter $ 5.10 308,048% 1,572
Follow-on Offerings First Quarter 531 17,940,000 95,336
At the Market Offering Progfams Second Quarter 540 23,087,089 124,746
Total 41,335,137 221,654
2020
At the Market Offering Program First Quarter $ 6.13 3,170,727% 19,447
At the Market Offering Program Second Quarter - - -
At the Market Offering Pra@ram Third Quarter 5.06 3,073,326 15,566
At the Market Offering Pro@ram Fourth Quarter 5.32 6,775,187 36,037

13,019,240 71,050

(1) Weighted average price received per share is after deducting the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other

(2) NEeTHEceReS are net of the underwriters’ discount, if applicable, and other offering costs.

(3) The Company has entered into nine equity distribution agreements, eight of which have either been terminated
hrsaysplatshaire weithseklient agreement.

Stock Repurchase Program

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repl2dd2@®0dharés of the Company’s
common stock. On February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increasein the stock repurchase
RERGfiBNE BUNd2aMares of the Company's common stock. CoupletB®j#b#teres remaining from the o2, 000
share authorization, the increased authorization brought the total abtB06ZiRITates, representing 10% of the
Company’s then outstanding share count. As part of the stock repurchase program, shares may be purchased
tPePRaBtBALK®ock purchases, through privately negotiated transactions, or pursuantto any trading plan that
HRBORMALERIRA Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act’).

WinasemalietireREEOR@SAEe with Exchange Act Rule 10b-18, which sets certain restrictions on the method,
timing, price and volume of
16



open market stock repurchases. The timing, manner, price and amount of any repurchases will be determined
BshetfoAraRaWIINGES subject to economic and market conditions, stock price, applicable legal requirements and
atiBbRGHER ddt not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of common stock and the
BrecHa Ry Rarreisraipanyes discretion without prior notice.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through June 30, 2021, the Company repé8baSethares
at aiPt@egate cost of approximéletniilion, including commissions and fees, for a weighted averdgEOpeceturs.
No shares were repurchased during the six months ended June 30, 2021. During the six months ended June
Ach AeREsBtP LemaPamo shares at an aggregate cost of approxifhateilién, including commissions and fees, for a
weighted average price8afZper share. The remaining authorization under the repurchase program as of June 30,
837,31%hares. 2021 was

Cash Dividends

The table below presents the cash dividends declared on the Company’s
common stock.

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 1.395% 4,662
2014 2.160 22,643
2015 1.920 38,748
2016 1.680 41,388
2017 1.680 70,717
2018 1.070 55,814
2019 0.960 54,421
2020 0.790 53,570
2021 - YTD 0.455 45,460
Totals $ 12.110% 387,423

(1) OnJuly 14, 202ithe Company declared a divideAd6f%er share to be paidtargust 27, 202The effect of this dividend is
in the table above but is not reflected in the Company’s financial statements as of Juriecidjed21.

NOTE 8. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In April 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted, and the stockholders approved, the
2020 reqiditislacdr@iapitalamthe “2021 Incentive Plan”) to replace the Orchid Island Capital, Inc. 2012
EheitpdicemoenfRlarPlan” and together with the 2021 Incentive Plan, the “Incentive Plans”). The 2021
proerdia® fBtahe award of stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock award, performance units,
athardsgind wheednd equivalents with respect to awards of performance units and other equity-based
amwerdislpasdards. The 2021 Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the
Doeygtars/esxBeprthat the Company’s full Board of Directors will administer awards made to directors
ofithe@@ampanyptoyieesffiliates. The 2021 Incentive Plan provides for awards of up to an aggregate of
dOtstan thegishaedsaoflour common stock (on a fully diluted basis) at the time of the awards, subject to
agyeegail#366,628hares of the Company’s common stock that may be issued under the 2021 Incentive
Incentive Plan repltsesTine 2042 Incentive Plan, and no further grants will be made under the 2012
Hoeetires, Rlay)outstanding awards under the 2012 Incentive Plan will continue in accordance with the
taomstivetia?042d any award agreement executed in connection with such outstanding awards.

Performance
Units
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The Company has issued, and may in the future issue additional, performance units under the
exelndbrdiodiPéaaatw artployees of its Manager. “Performance Units” vest after the end of a defined
pededoansatistamidn of the performance conditions set forth in the performanceMhéragezastergach
Performance Unit will be settled by the issuance of one share of the Company’s common stock, at
Reitbrtirarddenit will be cancelled. The Performance Units contain dividend equivalent rights, which
tntitlecilkie Biattibip@mms declared by the Company on common stock, but do not include the right to vote
gharewleflgorgmon stock. Performance Units are subject to forfeiture should the participant no longer
offiveras ampl@mdivt the Company or the Manager. Compensation expense for the Performance
theiteimaetognizstimyyperiod once it becomes probable that the performance conditions will be
achieved.

The following table presents information related to Performance Units outstanding during the six
30, r2021hareha@@dQlune

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2021 2020

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unvested, beginning of period 4554 $ 7.45 19,021 $ 7.78
Granted 137,897 5.88 - -
Vested and issued (4,554) 7.45 (8,305) 8.20
Unvested, end of period 137,897 % 5.88 10,716 $ 7.45
Compensation expense during period $ 113 $ 25
Unrecognized compensation expense, end of period $ 702 $ 17
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 716 $ 50
Weighted-average remaining vesting term (in years) 1.9 0.6

The number of shares of common stock issuable upon the vesting of the remaining outstanding
redPeztbmidneceicthigsiavéey of 2020 as a result of the book value impairment event that occurred
porgyaetrio theeQive@oyipensation Plans (the "Plans”). The book value impairment event occurred
e b€ pepstare declined by more than 15% during the quarter ended March 31, 2020 and the
penmsbany'dddiviefadme January 1, 2020 to June 30, 2020 was more than 10%. The Plans provide that
ifspaimaehoekeaiwecurs, then the number of outstanding Performance Units that are outstanding as of
thelgaadey pésadrshall be reduced by 15%.

Stock Awards

The Company has issued, and may in the future issue additional, immediately vested common
Incehticle lHdes tioecertain executive officers and employees of its Manager. The following table
rdebinteistedmationaalatedk issued during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. All of the
tdiyvestedosharzsiefl during the three months ended June 30, 2021, and the related compensation
exiherespeagete geaviterlperformed during the previous fiscal year.

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2021 2020
Fully vested shares granted 137,897 -
Weighted average grant date price per share $ 5.88 $ -
Compensation expense related to fully vested shares of common®tock awards $ 811 $ =
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(1) The awards issued during the six months ended March 31, 2021 were granted with respect to service performed in
$600,089apobxiomapelgsation expense related to the 2021 awards was accrued and recognized in 2020.

Deferred Stock Units

Non-employee directors receive a portion of their compensation in the form of deferred stock unit
pursmart(tixsSldsBntive Plans. Each DSU represents a right to receive one share of the Company’s
bl ansstotkediadely vested and are settled at a future date based on the election of the individual
partigipatividEimel BGuigalent rights, which entitle the participant to receive distributions declared by the
Stonipaniyese civickeod equivalent rights are settled in cash or additional DSUs at the participant’s
gletdmnthBrghBtdsvdtertbe underlying shares of common stock.

The following table presents information related to the DSUs outstanding during the six months
ancep020. June 30, 2021

(% in thousands, except per share data)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2021 2020

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding, beginning of period 90,946 $ 5.44 43570 $ 6.56
Granted and vested 22,528 5.64 25,518 3.99
Issued - - - -
Outstanding, end of period 113,474 $ 5.48 69,088 $ 5.61
Compensation expense during period $ 120 $ 90
Intrinsic value, end of period $ 589 $ 325

NOTE 9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

From ti_me to time, the Company may become involved in various claims andlegal actions arising in
busth8RINNARUGEMSS ¥ not aware of any reported or unreported contingencies at June 30, 2021.

NOTE 10. INCOME TAXES

The Company will generally not be subject to federal income tax on its REIT taxableincome to the extent it
taxaifrinbtraditoRisIdtockholders and satisfies the ongoing REIT requirements, including meeting certain
aarRirdRgoeetaNA REFK must generally distribute at least 90% of its REIT taxable income to its stockholders, of
witishnbdtsaanaedlWithin the taxable year, in order to avoid the imposition of an excise tax. The remaining
RplanasdEnust hetibni@fing taxable year, provided the REIT elects to treat such amount as a prior year
gislsiordipnansemeets certain

NOTE 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The Companyhad dividendeligible PerformanceUnits and Deferred StockUnits thatwere outstanding
morftHEhE@RI\ RO 8RR 1 and 2020. The basic anddiluted pershare computationsinclude theseunvested
Berirersestitnifitdifithere isincome availableto commonstock, asthey have dividendparticipationrights. The
Univeséed BertarerBesck Units have no contractualobligationto share inlosses. Becausethere isno such

pRiigatpmteuMEesiffiDeferred StockUnits are not includedin the basicand diluted EPS computationswhen no
incomeis availableto
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common stockeven thoughthey are consideredparticipatingsecurities.

The table below reconcilesthe numeratorand denominatorof EPS forthe six andthree monthsended
June 30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands, except per share information)

Six Months Ended June 30, Three Months Ended June
2021 2020 30, 2021 2020

Basic and diluted EPS per common share:
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS per share of common stock:

Net (loss) income - Basic and diluted $ (46,234% (42,427% (16,865% 48,772
Weighted average shares of common stock:

Shares of common stock outstanding at the balance sheet date 17,500 66,221 117,500 66,221

Unvested dividend eligible share based compensation

outstanding at the balance sheet date - - - 80

Effect of weighting (25,044) (812) (18,011) 9
Weighted average shares-basic and diluted 92,456 65,409 99,489 66,310
Net (loss) income per common share:

Basic $ (0.50)% (0.65)% 0.17)$ 0.74

Diluted $ (0.50)% (0.65)% 0.17)% 0.73
Anti-dilutive incentive shares not included in calculation. 251 80 251 -

NOTE 12. FAIR VALUE

The frameworkfor usingfair valueto measure assets andliabilities defines fairvalue as the price thatwould be
asséeeripesieosedriter a liability (an exit price).A fair value measure shouldreflect the assumptionsthat market
pAtisPadavsat @ Useiity, including the assumptionsabout therisk inherentin a particularvaluationtechnique, the
sHapedaERttIsHBY an asset andthe risk of non-performance.Required disclosuresinclude stratificationof
hrdasoeshaefaaali¥based oninputs the Company usesto derive fair value measurements. These stratifications
are:

e |evel 1 valuations,where thevaluationis based onquoted marketprices foridentical assetsor liabilities

lueeied inacieemi&aifes andover-the-countermarkets withsufficient volume),

e Level 2 valuations,where the valuationis based onquoted marketprices forsimilar instrumentstraded in
PREYS PRAIHEEHERI VRS milar instrumentsin marketsthat are notactive and model-based valuation
teghimicweiosumhitidAl are observablein the market,and

e Level 3 valuations,where thevaluationis generatedfrom model-basedtechniquesthat use significant
8BSERBARMIRNAE market, but observablebased on Company-specificdata. These unobservable
esputipeoefestifiates forassumptionsthat marketparticipantswould usein pricingthe asset or
l@&ﬁ'ﬁhﬁd@%i@ﬁllyinclude optionpricing models, discounted cash flowmodels and similar techniques,but
0y GHlaedRcddgRdBS of assetsor liabilitiesthat are notdirectly comparableto the subjectasset or liability.

The Company'sRMBS and TBA securitiesare Level 2 valuations,and such valuationscurrently are
bas€@atermitrperden eABINGRAYuUrcesand/or thirdparty brokerquotes, whenavailable. Because the price
eifAas MsMABKkéEertainjudgments and assumptionsabout the appropriate price to useto calculatethe fair
HrURSIHEh GEORPAEME ¥burcesuse variousvaluation techniquesto determinethe price of the Company’s
prevbEeshIdeaegierhRiBseRcentmarket forlike or identicalassets (includingsecurity coupon, maturity, yield, and
BEREAYPABISPRRIMiquesto determine market creditspreads (optionadjusted spread,zero volatilityspread,
soreadioshebbito B eesidhmarksuch as a TBA),and model drivenapproaches (the discountedcash flow method,
BlrekSeieles anith rely upon observablemarket ratessuch as theterm structure of interestrates and volatility).
pheiRGRReRiiesRERIbased on marketconvention. The pricingsource determinesthe spreadof recently

ebservaplEataRretydraEsets similarto those beingpriced. Thespread is thenadjusted basedon variancesin
certain characteristics
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between the market observationand the assetbeing priced. Those characteristicsinclude: typeof asset, the
srnpiedhitanbetasme)dhthe expectedfuture cashflows of theasset, whetherthe couponof the assetis fixed or
@9&%@{@)?@?&% securityif applicable,the coupon,the maturity, theissuer, size ofthe underlyingloans, yearin
whiehdhgiHaeRTas eaoslueratio, statein which theunderlyingloans reside, credit score of the underlying
ReERYSIEaRHBeEAVRARIEST the securityis determined by using the adjusted spread.

The Company’sfutures contractsare Level 1 valuations, as they are exchange-tradedinstrumentsand quoted
readM4@AIRINBSAIfUres contractsare settleddaily. The Company’sinterest rate swaps andinterest rate
guiaBtioRs arpd-eyeMAlue of interestrate swapsis determinedusing a discountedcash flow approach using
forwarddpartehiateiRpiERi8fe observableinputs. Thefair value of interestrate swaptionsis determinedusing an
optionpricing model.

RMBS (basedon the fairvalue option),derivativesand TBA securitieswere recordedat fair valueon a
andréfedin@PAScHIEIINGSBO, 2021 and 2020. When determiningfair value measurements, the Company
RASSHIdRRaagERGEIALPKet in whichit would transactand considersassumptionsthat marketparticipantswould
HSSHNPMBHEBS4NRe, the Company looksto active and observable markets to price identicalassets. When
iHeiRal anapteRIROEBAYREhy looks to marketobservable data for similar assets.

The followingtable presentsfinancial assets(liabilities)measured at fair valueon a recurringbasis as
Deceivuee 30, ZBEAVtive contracts are reported asa net positionby contracttype, and not based on master netting

arrangements.
(in thousands)
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable

Assets Inputs Inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
June 30, 2021
Mortgage-backed securities $ - % 4,671,239% -
Interest rate swaps - 7,851 -
Interest rate swaptions - 15,925 -
Interest rate floors - 2,315 -
TBA securities - 875 -
December 31, 2020
Mortgage-backed securities $ - % 3,726,895% -
Interest rate swaps - (24,704) -
Interest rate swaptions - 9,703 -
TBA securities - 2,773 -

During the six and three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, there were no transfers of financial
level$3ets gF Babilities between

NOTE 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Management Agreement

The Company is externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”)
maRggewaehtadredrians. of e management agreement has been renewed through February 20,

a0whanit pividearfextension options thereafter and is subject to certain termination rights. Under
the terms of the
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management agreement, the Manager is responsible for administering the business activities and day-
tRdey epRiaioma®@Manager receives a monthly management fee in the amount of:

° One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month-end equity, as defined
Hytee mamagement

° One-twelfth of 1.25% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $250 million
agddess $5a0 @fillion, and

° One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month-end equity that is greater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf
MaRBgeiotRaIBfpany’s pro rata portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management
aviepaetePiALLE the management agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination
frReeAWR L EhERR annual management fee, as defined in the management agreement, before or on

tieHasiglaenfdhe term

Total expenses recorded for the management fee and costs incurred were &@onilionaatP®million
for the six and three months ended June 30, 2021, respecdidahyilianda®dlgmillion for the six and three
months ended June 30, 2020, respectively. At June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the net amount
gppriskafiilessafion anddBmillion, respectively.

Other Relationships with Bimini

Robert Cauley, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board of Directors, also serves as Chief
Chaif@s iR OSiguasidirectors of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. George H. Haas, 1V,
offiéehiet Bfano@tment Officer, Secretary and a member of our Board of Directors, also serves as the Chief
friveseir oitersetifl Treasurer of Bimini and owns shares of common stock of Bimini. In addition, as of June
3G,5¥)2dgRumisl evBedof the Company’s common stock.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should beread in conjunction with the
statBRfigland notes to those statements included in Item 1 of this Form 10-Q. The discussion may contain certain
FRMAH NG involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements are those that are not historical in nature.
ARy eeti6, such as those set forth under “Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, our actual
ERFEimBERYially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements.

Overview

We are a specialty finance company that invests in residential mortgage-backed securities (“RMBS”) which are
gualsfied®ny a federally chartered corporation or agency (“Agency RMBS”). Ourinvestment strategy focuses on,
a0t RArEAccategories of Agency RMBS: (i) traditional pass-through Agency RMBS, such as mortgage pass-
Issodahgarbliaéesiae, Freddie Mac or Ginnie Mae (the “GSEs”) and collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMOs”)
EPued B g &n9E§) structured Agency RMBS, such as interest-only securities (“lOs”), inverseinterest-only securities
6‘Hﬁb$ﬁhﬂﬁﬁly securities (“POs”), among other types of structured Agency RMBS. We were formed by Bimini in August
é8&fnenced operations on November 24, 2010 and completed our initial public offering (“IPO”)on February 20, 2013.
Weearally managed by Bimini Advisors, an investment adviser registered with the Securitiesand Exchange
Commission (the “SEC").

Our business objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusted total returns over the long termthrough a combination
appfé&ianialand the payment of regular monthly distributions. We intend to achieve this objective by investing in and
5‘[@@%@%‘@'%pital between the two categories of Agency RMBS described above. We seekto generate income from (i)
Hherget biesapleveraged PT RMBS portfolio and the leveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio, and
(Hixdhedniergsherate from the unleveraged portion of our structured Agency RMBS portfolio. We intend to fund our PT
BABH dR@ur structured Agency RMBS through short-term borrowings structured as repurchase agreements. PT
Ryt 2RrRIEI8IBfpI€slly exhibit materially different sensitivities to movements in interestrates. Declines in the value of
ARG/ R EMERL by appreciation in the other. The percentage of capital that we allocate to our two Agency RMBS asset
garaaiiediriBe actively managed in an effort to maintain the level of income generated by the combined portfolios,
thecstrbitbeaiiRaid the stability of the value of the combined portfolios. We believe that this strategy will enhance our
lﬂ}%ﬂ'ﬂﬂﬁgs, book value stability and asset selection opportunities in various interestrate environments.

We operate so as to qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) under the Internal Revenue
amé&rRRy ‘%ﬂﬂe%@oéé”). We generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax to the extent that we currently
Aistiboel@fritdme (as defined in the Code) to our stockholders and maintain our REIT qualification.

The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “ORC”.
Capital Raising Activities

On January 23, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “January 2020 Equity Distribution
threAg/gieRagEN¥iBursuant to which we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amountof
5260 AUNIABPERN @S transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated
HapsaGiang 78VedssiRdes under the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of
HdPtsoBlers @nspproximately $19.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior toits termination in August 2020.

On August 4, 2020, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “August 2020 Equity Distribution
saleRHGEASHUY WilthiaBwhich we could offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amountof $150,000,000

ebatatsROEKIN transactions that were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions.
We issued a total
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of 27,493,650 shares under the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement foraggregate gross proceeds of
ARmMEXiRadehe BaRIbBeds of approximately $147.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in June
2021.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “January 2021 Underwriting Agreement”)
SecWHﬂeb'ﬂLMo(ﬁ%ﬁ Morgan”), relating to the offer and sale of 7,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan
BHEEBaTTDbtircommon stock from the Company pursuant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.20 per
fRagraiierfgiPoMorgan a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 1,140,000 shares of our common stock on the
EBMAISHASMIEN J.P. Morgan exercised in full on January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 8,740,000 shares of
Styckadegififed on January 25, 2021, with proceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement”) with
relafifiyy Mafg@Bffer and sale of 8,000,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our
fromApdagiolirsiant to the March 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.45 per share. In addition, we granted J.P.
MARrsrRApcHa%e up to an additional 1,200,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions,
wihuehised iMaigam March 3, 2021. The closing of the offering of 9,200,000 shares of our common stock occurred on
MigtiohrSc @834 to us of approximately $50.0 million, net of offering expenses.

On June 22, 2021, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution
saleRHGEAHIY Wilthias which we may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amountof $250,000,000
ebatAbPRbEKIN transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions.
Pbraueteddsgezfa total of 5,750,000 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross
BReRARAEly $31.1 million, and net proceeds of approximately $30.6 million, after commissionsand fees.
SobseieriudunrIBO30, 2021, we issued a total of 5,560,000 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution

AgireqRadRiss proceeds of approximately $28.6 million, and net proceeds of approximately $28.2 million, after
feygmissions and

Stock Repurchase Agreement

On July 29, 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of our
Thect@rmﬁ@?rh%ﬂ%r, price and amount of any repurchases is determined by the Company in its discretion and is
aHbieshtRAcESIIMIBNS, stock price, applicable legal requirements and other factors. The authorization does not
fbhaaiardadyosapeiyar amount of common stock and the program may be suspended or discontinued at the
wRAMADIDIRHEEODN February 8, 2018, the Board of Directors approved an increasein the stock repurchase
RERBlIBAKLIQL, IPABAD shares of the Company’s common stock. Coupled with the 783,757 sharesremaining from the
SHaBaA2IR02886N, the increased authorization brought the total authorization to 5,306,579 shares, representing 10%
eldiany’s then outstanding share count. This stock repurchase program has no termination date.

From the inception of the stock repurchase program through June 30, 2021, the Companyrepurchased a total of
at an-888reqhtee686 of approximately $40.4 million, including commissions and fees, for a weighted average price of
$Rd Cpafisddialid not repurchase any shares of its common stock during the six and three months ended June 30,
PER4INIRG authorization under the repurchase program as of June 30, 2021 was 837,311 shares.

Factors that Affect our Results of Operations and Financial Condition

A variety of industry and economic factors may impact our results of operations andfinancial condition. These
factors include:

e interest rate trends;
e the difference between Agency RMBS yields and our funding and hedging costs;
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e competition for, and supply of, investments in Agency RMBS;

e actions taken by the U.S. government, including the presidential administration, U.S. Federal Reserve (the
Hreashdheirastsr Agency (the “FHFA”), the Federal Open Market Committee (the “FOMC”) and the U.S.

e prepayRfent rates on mortgages underlying our Agency RMBS and credittrends insofar as they affect

o BIREAMBRAKERI8PMents.

In addition, a variety of factors relating to our business may also impact our results of operations and financial
factoEORliRIe: These

our degree of leverage;

our access to funding and borrowing capacity;

our borrowing costs;

our hedging activities;

the market value of our investments; and

the requirements to qualify as a REIT and the requirements to qualify for aregistration exemption under the

CYRPBEIR AC.

Results of Operations

Described below arethe Company’sresults of operations for the sixand three months endedJune 30, 2021,as
CompRMPareSiatdist operationsfor the sixand three months endedJune 30, 2020.

Net (Loss)Income Summary

Net loss forthe six monthsended June 30, 2021 was$46.2 million,or $0.50 pershare. Netloss for the six months
202enaedsdenedfllion, or$0.65 pershare. Net loss forthe three monthsended June 30, 2021 was$16.9 million, or
#RdrheestrenNetmonths ended June 30, 2020was $48.8 million, or$0.74 pershare. The componentsof net (I0ss)
H@MhedentioR®i3 ended June 30, 2021and 2020, along withthe changesin those componentsare presentedin the
table below:

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30, Three Months Ended, June 30,
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
Interest income $ 56,110% 62,929 % (6,819% 29,254 % 27,258 % 1,996
Interest expense (3,497) (21,002) 17,505 (1,556) (4,479) 2,923
Net interest income 52,613 41,927 10,686 27,698 22,779 4,919
(Losses) gains on RMBS and derivative contrac{91,635) (79,457) (12,178) (40,844) 28,749 (69,593)
Net portfolio (loss) income (39,022) (37,530) (1,492) (13,146) 51,528 (64,674)
Expenses (7,212) (4,897) (2,315) (3,719) (2,756) (963)
Net (loss) income $  (46,234%  (42,427% (3,807% (16,8658 48,772%  (65,637)

GAAP and Non-GAAP Reconciliations

In addition to the results presented in accordance with GAAP, our results of operations discussed below
nonr@WAP dedaicial information, including “Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and
lesest’ E¥pmamsshi@nd “Economic Net Interest Income.”

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses
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We have elected to account for our Agency RMBS under the fair value option. Securities held under the
opti@ir asduecorded at estimated fair value, with changes in the fair value recorded as unrealized gains or
thessiatbineeias of operations.

In addition, we have not designated our derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes as
accbedtjag fourposes, but rather hold them for economic hedging purposes. Changes in fair value of these
presentediaaeseparate line item in the Company’s statements of operations and are not included in interest
supknRe. fiAancial reporting purposes, interest expense and cost of funds are not impacted by the fluctuation
gevakteyefittstruments.

Presenting net earnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses allows management to: (i)
inteissdatedhm@aind other expenses of the Company over time, free of all fair value adjustments and (ii)
effeetisdhess of our funding and hedging strategies on our capital allocation decisions and our asset
allocaimhingesidrhadgig strategies, capital allocation and asset selection are integral to our risk
tharefgeeneniticstlatetinge arahagement of our portfolio. We believe that the presentation of our net earnings
ardudhregatieatizgdins is useful to investors because it provides a means of comparing our results of
opepEmssbdhwseeafot elected the same accounting treatment. Our presentation of net earnings excluding
teabzadidexhdains and losses may not be comparable to similarly-titted measures of other companies, who
oxyulsdotisieAsnd result, net earnings excluding realized and unrealized gains and losses should not be
sabstiatedaxsoar GAAP net income (loss) as a measure of our financial performance or any measure of our
(Rvidity Thdeable below presents a reconciliation of our net income (loss) determined in accordance with
ExAiRgexatiding realized and unrealized gains and losses.

Net Earnings Excluding Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses
(in thousands, except per share data)

Per Share
Net Earnings Net Earnings
Excluding Excluding
Realized and Realized and Realized and Realized and
Net Unrealized Unrealized Net Unrealized Unrealized
Income Gains and Gains and Income Gains and Gains and
(GAAP) Lossed Losses (GAAP) Losses Losses
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ (16,865% (40,844% 23,979% 0.17)% (0.41)% 0.24
March 31, 2021 (29,369) (50,791) 21,422 (0.34) (0.60) 0.26
December 31, 2020 16,479 (4,605) 21,084 0.23 (0.07) 0.30
September 30, 2020 28,076 5,745 22,331 0.42 0.09 0.33
June 30, 2020 48,772 28,749 20,023 0.74 0.43 0.31
March 31, 2020 (91,199) (108,206) 17,007 (1.41) (1.68) 0.27
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ (46,234% (91,635% 45,401 % (0.50)% (0.99)% 0.49
June 30, 2020 (42,427) (79,457) 37,030 (0.65) (1.21) 0.56

(1) Includes realized and unrealized gains (losses) on RMBS and derivative financial instruments, including net interest income or
mtperstaate swaps

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income
We use derivative and other hedging instruments, specifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and Treasury Note

futuf@sNotettacts, short positions in U.S. Treasury securities, interest rate swaps and swaptions, to hedge a
paetiontohtheisk on repurchase agreements in a rising rate environment.
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We have not elected to designate our derivative holdings for hedge accounting treatment. Changes in
instfaimeaitseané thessented in a separate line item in our statements of operations and not included in interest
supkenRe. fiancial reporting purposes, interest expense and cost of funds are not impacted by the fluctuation
aeviaktdyefittstruments.

For the purpose of computing economic net interest income and ratios relating to cost of funds
intenesasuEe$RARR been adjusted to reflect the realized and unrealized gains or losses on certain
trericativp anstusvsngpecifically Eurodollar, Fed Funds and U.S. Treasury futures, and interest rate swaps
trat perpiiottseach period presented. We believe that adjusting our interest expense for the periods
prdesstscioytiiesgai@svative instruments would not accurately reflect our economic interest expense for
teesemp@itids.thbse derivative instruments may cover periods that extend into the future, not just the current
pealaebdAaryunrealized gains or losses on the instruments reflect the change in market value of the
grsingesrih candkatyivy interest rates applicable to the term covered by the instrument, not just the current
period.gfeseaidt, we have combined the effects of the derivative financial instruments in place for the
thematttiad iptaiedtveitipense incurred on borrowings to reflect total economic interest expense for the
mplesbéxpensel. including the effect of derivative instruments for the period, is referred to as economic
Nétiest giénseme, when calculated to include the effect of derivative instruments for the period, is referred
reagaEmesbimeome. This presentation includes gains or losses on all contracts in effect during the reporting
treriodrreovgién@d as well as periods in the future.

The Company may invest in TBAs, which are forward contracts for the purchase or sale of Agency
preddBmMiatea price, face amount, issuer, coupon and stated maturity on an agreed-upon future date. The
RddBiBaAberdslivered into the contract are not known until shortly before the settlement date. We may
sbtfesaeptjabtmove the settlement of these securities out to a later date by entering into a dollar roll
hgesagtilMBB@urchased or sold for a forward settlement date are typically priced at a discount to
settivegenttbeauritiest month. Consequently, forward purchases of Agency RMBS and dollar roll transactions
fepreseoffebalance sheet financing. These TBAs are accounted for as derivatives and marked to market
thedeigie tiheGradosnar losses on TBAs are included with gains or losses on other derivative contracts and are
maereshidedrime for purposes of the discussions below.

We believe that economic interest expense and economic net interest income provide meaningful
consitematiaddiion to the respective amounts prepared in accordance with GAAP. The non-GAAP
menaagegadalio evaluate its financial position and performance without the effects of certain transactions
adpi&WARts that are not necessarily indicative of our current investment portfolio or operations. The
lowssdi peddgaivative instruments presented in our statements of operations are not necessarily
heeresentat\expetisetitat we will ultimately realize. This is because as interest rates move up or down in the
fdime othlesses we ultimately realize, and which will affect our total interest rate expense in future periods,
theyudiféalifrethgains or losses recognized as of the reporting date.

Our presentation of the economic value of our hedging strategy has important limitations. First, other
particiskiets may calculate economic interest expense and economic net interest income differently than the
valguate them. Second, while we believe that the calculation of the economic value of our hedging strategy
dbswrldezips to present our financial position and performance, it may be of limited usefulness as an
Ahahgfoad folee economic value of our investment strategy should not be viewed in isolation and is not a
BubstistiExfmense and net interest income computed in accordance with GAAP.

The tables below present a reconciliation of the adjustments to interest expense shown for each period
dernaditredristoumnents, and the income statement line item, gains (losses) on derivative instruments,
aatmrasedénwith GAAP for each quarter of 2021 to date and 2020.

Gains (Losses) on Derivative Instruments
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(in thousands)

Funding Hedges

Recognized in Attributed to Attributed to
Income U.S. Treasury and TBA Current Future
Statement Securities Gain (Loss) Period Periods
(GAAP) (Short Positions) (Long Positions) (Non-GAAP) (Non-GAAP)
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ (34,915% (5,963)% - $ (5,104)% (23,848)
March 31, 2021 45,472 9,133 (8,559) (4,044) 48,942
December 31, 2020 8,538 (436) 5,480 (5,790) 9,284
September 30, 2020 4,079 131 3,336 (6,900) 7,512
June 30, 2020 (8,851) 582 1,133 (5,751) (4,815)
March 31, 2020 (82,858) (7,090) - (4,900) (70,868)
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 10,557 $ 3,170 $ (8,559) (9,148)% 25,094
June 30, 2020 (91,709) (6,508) 1,133 (10,651) (75,683)

Economic Interest Expense and Economic Net Interest Income
(in thousands)

Interest Expense on Borrowings

Gains
(Losses) on
Derivative
Instruments Net Interest Income
GAAP Attributed Economic GAAP Economic
Interest Interest to Current Interest Net Interest Net Interest
Income Expense Periot) Expensd Income Incomé
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 29,254 $ 1,556 $ (5,104)$ 6,660 $ 27,698 $ 22,594
March 31, 2021 26,856 1,941 (4,044) 5,985 24,915 20,871
December 31, 2020 25,893 2,011 (5,790) 7,801 23,882 18,092
September 30, 2020 27,223 2,043 (6,900) 8,943 25,180 18,280
June 30, 2020 27,258 4,479 (5,751) 10,230 22,779 17,028
March 31, 2020 35,671 16,523 (4,900) 21,423 19,148 14,248
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 56,110 $ 3,497 $ (9,148)$ 12,645 $ 52,613 $ 43,465
June 30, 2020 62,929 21,002 (10,651) 31,653 41,927 31,276

(1) Reflects the effect of derivative instrument hedges for only the period presented.

(2) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP interest expense.

(3) Calculated by adding the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period presented to GAAP net interest
income.

Net Interest Income

During the six monthsended June 30, 2021, we generated$52.6 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $56.1
incdRiBinph RIREShssets offset by $3.5million ofinterest expenseon borrowings. For the comparableperiod ended
denerdte@929.whillion of net interestincome, consistingof $62.9 million ofinterest incomefrom RMBS assets offsetby
farBdnilipenteon borrowings. The $6.8 milliondecrease ininterestincome wasdue to a 131basis point("bps")
deeragasiniBe yialdialy offsetby a $1,070.5million increasein average RMBS. The $17.5 milliondecrease ininterest
RXBENEB YRS dltgease inthe average cost of funds, partially offsetby a $1,057.6million increasein average outstanding
borrowings.

On an economichasis, ourinterestexpense onborrowingsfor the sixmonths endedJune 30,2021 and 2020was
$31¥A Afimilirsspaetively, resultingin $43.5 millionand $31.3million of economicnet interestincome, respectively.
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During thethree monthsended June 30, 2021, we generated$27.7 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $29.3
inteBEIGR@ mefrom RMBS assets offset by $1.6 millionof interestexpense onborrowings. For the threemonths ended
WengeHorafed$22.8 millionof net interestincome, consistingof $27.3million ofinterest incomefrom RMBS assets offset
PR Eﬂwéh@ﬁon borrowings. The $2.0 millionincrease ininterestincome wasdue to a $1,378.1million increasein
pueiialy BBy a 89 bpsdecreasein the yieldon average RMBS. The $2.9 milliondecrease ininterest expensewas
deertaadfps average cost of funds, partially offsetby a $1,355.7million increasein average outstanding borrowings.

On an ec_:onomicbasis, ourinterestexpense onborrowingsfor the threemonths endedJune 30, 2021and 2020 was
$1088 mimdfiorapectively, resultingin $22.6 millionand $17.0million of economic netinterestincome, respectively.

The taples b_elow provideinformationon our portfolioaverage balances,interest income,yield onassets, average
expBABOVEHIHITRI@S net interestincome and net interestspread forthe six monthsended June 30, 2021 and 2020 and
2891 qHa1RE 8hd 2020 onboth a GAAP and economicbasis.

($ in thousands)

Average Yield on Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
RMBS Interest Average Average GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Held) Income _ RMBS Borrowing/s Basis Basi Basis Basi§)
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 4,504,887% 29,254 2.60%%$ 4,348,192% 1,556 $ 6,660 0.14% 0.61%
March 31, 2021 4,032,716 26,856 2.66% 3,888,633 1,941 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
December 31, 2020 3,633,631 25,893 2.85% 3,438,444 2,011 7,801 0.23% 0.91%
September 30, 2020 3,422,564 27,223 3.18% 3,228,021 2,043 8,943 0.25% 1.11%
June 30, 2020 3,126,779 27,258 3.49% 2,992,494 4,479 10,230 0.60% 1.37%
March 31, 2020 3,269,859 35,671 4.36% 3,129,178 16,523 21,423 2.11% 2.74%
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $  4,268,801% 56,110 2.63%% 4,118,413% 3,497 $ 12,645 0.17% 0.61%
June 30, 2020 3,198,319 62,929 3.94% 3,060,836 21,002 31,653 1.37% 2.07%
($ in thousands)
Net Interest Income Net Interest Spread
GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Basis Basi® Basis Basi¥)
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 27,698 $ 22,594 2.46% 1.99%
March 31, 2021 24,915 20,871 2.46% 2.04%
December 31, 2020 23,882 18,093 2.62% 1.94%
September 30, 2020 25,180 18,280 2.93% 2.07%
June 30, 2020 22,779 17,028 2.89% 2.12%
March 31, 2020 19,148 14,248 2.25% 1.62%
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 52,613 $ 43,465 2.46% 2.02%
June 30, 2020 41,927 31,276 2.57% 1.87%

(1) Portfolio yields and costs of borrowings presented in the tables above and the tables on pages 30 and 31 are calculated based
andtege balances of the underlying investment portfolio/borrowings balances and are annualized for the periods presented.
Bakagges for quarterly periods are calculated using two data points, the beginning and ending balances.

(2) Economic interest expense and economic net interguieiseotae in the table above and the tables on page 31 includes the effect
of our derivative instrument hedges for only the periods presented.

(3) Represents interest cost of our borrowings and the effect of derivative instrument hedges attributed to the period divided by

aveRyeBS.

(4) Economic net interest spread is calculated by subtracting average economic cost of funds from realized yield on average
RMBS.
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Interest Income and Average Asset Yield

Our interestincome forthe six monthsended June 30, 2021 and2020 was $56.1million and $62.9 million,
avef8§RaRIME h¥MaRHof $4,268.8 millionand $3,198.3million forthe six monthsended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
1esiest\RlYpdhtoliowas 2.63%and 3.94% for the sixmonths endedJune 30, 2021and 2020, respectively. Forthe six
DpirBsended as comparedto the sixmonths ended June 30, 2020, there wasa $6.8 milliondecrease ininterest income
QH§ tREedsdin the yieldon average RMBS, patrtially offsetby the $1,070.5million increasein average RMBS.

Our interestincome forthe three months ended June 30, 2021and 2020 was$29.3 millionand $27.3million,
avef8§BRNMEY hWY&iIhgs of $4,504.9 millionand $3,126.8million forthe three months ended June 30, 2021and 2020,
esiResH\®lypdAmliowas 2.60% and 3.49% for the threemonths endedJune 30, 2021and 2020, respectively. Forthe
tuee B®NE02 EAd@@mparedto the threemonths endedJune 30, 2020, there wasa $2.0 millionincrease inthterest
Beamedutilfonincrease in average RMBS, partially offsetby the 89 bps decreasein the yieldon average RMBS.

The table below presentsthe average portfolio size, incomeand yields of our respectivesub-portfolios, consisting of
andSEREIEERMBRe sixmonths ended June 30, 2021and 2020, and for eachquarter of2021 to date and 2020.

(% in thousands)

Average RMBS Held Interest Income Realized Yield on Average RMBS
PT Structured PT Structured PT Structured
RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total RMBS RMBS Total

Three Months Ended

June 30, 2021 $ 4,436,135% 68,752 $ 4,504,887$% 29,286 $ (32)$ 29,254 2.64% (0.18)% 2.60%
March 31, 2021 3,997,965 34,751 4,032,716 26,869 (13) 26,856 2.69% (0.15)% 2.66%
December 31, 2020 3,603,885 29,746 3,633,631 25,933 (40) 25,893 2.88% (0.53)% 2.85%
September 30, 2020 3,389,037 33,527 3,422,564 27,021 202 27,223 3.19% 241% 3.18%
June 30, 2020 3,088,603 38,176 3,126,779 27,004 254 27,258 3.50% 2.67% 3.49%
March 31, 2020 3,207,467 62,392 3,269,859 35,286 385 35,671 4.40% 247% 4.36%
Six Months Ended

June 30, 2021 $ 4,217,050 51,751$ 4,268,801$ 56,155$% (45)$ 56,110 2.66% 0.17)% 2.63%
June 30, 2020 3,148,035 50,284 3,198,319 62,290 639 62,929 3.96% 2.54% 3.94%

Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

We had averageoutstandingborrowings of $4,118.4 millionand $3,060.8 million andtotal interestexpense of$3.5
milliBH fBPRRHAMENnths ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Our average cost of fundswas 0.17%for the six
Dpirsoended, compared to 1.37% forthe comparable period in 2020. The $17.5million decreasein interestexpense
B@QHSerﬁﬁﬁ@l@e average cost of funds, partially offsetby the $1,057.6million increasein average outstanding
B FAVBHES Ehaad Jo@e 30, 2021 as comparedto the sixmonths endedJune 30, 2020.

Our economicinterest expensewas $12.6 million and $31.7 millionfor the sixmonths endedJune 30, 2021and
The?OZfhsespastiiedtlecrease inthe average economic costof funds t00.61% forthe six monthsended June 30, 2021
frmBMehirE ended June 30, 2020.

We had average outstanding borrowings of $4,348.2million and $2,992.5 millionand totalinterestexpense of$1.6
milliglenRecteSmonths endedJune 30, 2021and 2020, respectively. Ouraverage costof funds was0.14% and
BRtSHBERRIUNe 30, 2021and 2020, respectively. Therewas a 46 bpsdecrease inthe average cost of fundsand a

ered Millidtage outstandingborrowings during thethree monthsended June 30, 2021, compared tothe three months
epdedJune 30,
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Our economic_:interest expensewas $6.7 millionand $10.2 million forthe three months endedJune 30, 2021and
ThefOheSPEBEWecreasein the averageeconomic costof fundsto 0.61% forthe three months ended June 30, 2021
freMhkedHdhths ended June 30, 2020.

Since all ofour repurchaseagreementsare short-term,changes in market ratesdirectly affectour interestexpense.
of fPdRYEIAg8t688h a GAAP basis was 4bps above theaverage one-monthLIBOR and4 bps belowthe average six-
fﬁefﬁhéﬂﬁpe%é‘érd June 30, 2021. Our average economic costof funds was51 bps abovethe average one-month LIBOR
apevs thesaveragesix-month LIBORfor the quarterended June 30, 2021. The averageterm to maturityof the
aYE@NAINGIERLIERSSE to 29 days atJune 30, 2021from 31 daysat December31, 2020.

The tablesbelow presentthe average balance of borrowings outstanding, interest expenseand average cost of
onefwisiRAAEYRIAESNth LIBOR ratesfor the sixmonths endedJune 30, 2021and 2020, and for eachquarter in2021 to
#atBaIMIA8ARP and economic basis.

($ in thousands)

Average Interest Expense Average Cost of Funds
Balance of GAAP Economic GAAP Economic
Borrowings Basis Basis Basis Basis
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 4,348,192% 1,556 $ 6,660 0.14% 0.61%
March 31, 2021 3,888,633 1,941 5,985 0.20% 0.62%
December 31, 2020 3,438,444 2,011 7,801 0.23% 0.91%
September 30, 2020 3,228,021 2,043 8,943 0.25% 1.11%
June 30, 2020 2,992,494 4,479 10,230 0.60% 1.37%
March 31, 2020 3,129,178 16,523 21,423 2.11% 2.74%
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 4,118,413% 3,497 $ 12,645 0.17% 0.61%
June 30, 2020 3,060,836 21,002 31,653 1.37% 2.07%

Average GAAP Cost of Funds Average Economic Cost of Funds

Relative to Average Relative to Average
Average LIBOR One-Month Six-Month One-Month Six-Month

One-Month Six-Month LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR
Three Months Ended
June 30, 2021 0.10% 0.18% 0.04% (0.04)% 0.51% 0.43%
March 31, 2021 0.13% 0.23% 0.07% (0.03)% 0.49% 0.39%
December 31, 2020 0.15% 0.27% 0.08% (0.04)% 0.76% 0.64%
September 30, 2020 0.17% 0.35% 0.08% (0.10)% 0.94% 0.76%
June 30, 2020 0.55% 0.70% 0.05% (0.10)% 0.82% 0.67%
March 31, 2020 1.34% 1.43% 0.77% 0.68% 1.40% 1.31%
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 0.11% 0.20% 0.06% (0.03)% 0.50% 0.41%
June 30, 2020 0.94% 1.06% 0.43% 0.31% 1.13% 1.01%

Gains or Losses
The table below presentsour gainsor losses forthe six andthree monthsended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30, Three Months Ended June 30,
2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change
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Realized (losses) gains on sales of RMBS $ (6,045% (25,0208  18,975% 1,352 % 3,360 $ (2,008)

Unrealized (losses) gains on RMBS (96,147) 37,272 (133,419) (7,282) 34,240 (41,522)
Total (losses) gains on RMBS (102,192) 12,252  (114,444) (5,930) 37,600 (43,530)
Gains (losses) on interest rate futures 278 (13,042) 13,320 (2,210) (486) (1,724)
Gains (losses) on interest rate swaps 9,446 (68,202) 77,648 (17,677) (7,579) (10,098)
Gains (losses) on payer swaptions (short positions) 1,212 (889) 2,101 27,379 (889) 28,268
Gains (losses) on payer swaptions (long positions) 3,710 (4,201) 7,911 (36,360) (1,612) (34,748)
Gains (losses) on interest rate floors 1,300 - 1,300 (84) - (84)
Gains (losses) on TBA securities (short positions) 3,170 (6,377) 9,547 (5,963) 713 (6,676)
(Losses) gains on TBA securities (long positions)  (8,559) 1,133 (9,692) - 1,133 (1,133)
Losses on U.S. Treasury securities (short positions) - (131) 131 - (131) 131

Total (losses) gains from derivative instruments 10,557 (91,709) 102,266 (34,915) (8,851) (26,064)

We invest inRMBS withthe intentto earn netincome fromthe realizedyield on thoseassets overtheir related
costsngichanederBgrpose of making shortterm gainsfrom sales. However, we havesold, and maycontinue tosell,
QXifliiRG ReRRIsSRts, which our managementbelieves mighthave higherrisk-adjustedreturns inlight of currentor
ftisippiRlBYeReshiie§rams orgeneral economicconditions or to manage our balance sheet as partof our
anaeddrbiityMghRg8ReMdnthsended June 30, 2021 and 2020, we receivedproceeds of$1,680.9 millionand $2,023.3
raidiidttively, fromthe sales of RMBS. Most of thesesales duringthe six monthsended June 30, 2020 occurredduring
esgroodd@df@fe soldassets inorder to maintainsufficient cashand liquidityand reducerisk associatedwith the
BR8keBUEOV 5oLEBuring the three monthsended June 30, 2021 and 2020, we receivedproceeds of $692.4 million
psp&eideRmilbemthe sales of RMBS.

Realized andunrealized gains andlosses on RMBSare drivenin part by changes inyields and interestrates, which
of tiadfestthRiesiEintlr portfolio. The unrealizedgains and losseson RMBS alsoinclude the premium lostas a resultof
HerRMUBAYIS§Mortgages, decreasingunrealized gains or increasingunrealizedlosses as speeds or premiums increase.
GrRiRtepastiRgsaatures contracts areaffected by changes inimplied forwardrates during thehe pablmb@leriopresents
historical interest rate data for eachquarter endduring 2021to date and2020.

5 Year 10 Year 15 Year 30 Year Three

U.S. Treasury U.S. Treasury Fixed-Rate Fixed-Rate Month

Raté) Raté Mortgage R&te Mortgage Réite LIBOR)

June 30, 2021 0.87% 1.44% 2.27% 2.98% 0.13%
March 31, 2021 0.94% 1.75% 2.39% 3.08% 0.19%
December 31, 2020 0.36% 0.92% 2.22% 2.68% 0.23%
September 30, 2020 0.27% 0.68% 2.39% 2.89% 0.24%
June 30, 2020 0.29% 0.65% 2.60% 3.16% 0.31%
March 31, 2020 0.38% 0.70% 2.89% 3.45% 1.10%

(1) Historical 5 and 10 Year U.S. Treasury Rates are obtained from quoted end of day prices on the Chicago Board Options
(2) Bistbaingk30 Year and 15 Year Fixed Rate Mortgage Rates are obtained from Freddie Mac’s Primary Mortgage Market Survey.
(3) Historical LIBOR is obtained from the Intercontinental Exchange Benchmark Administration Ltd.

Expenses
For the sixand three monthsended June 30,2021, the Company’stotal operatingexpenses were
millappaoxi$@ eIy filiod, respectively, comparedto approximately$4.9 millionand $2.8 million, respectively, for

theesixramdhs ended June 30,2020. The table belowpresents abreakdown of operating expenses forthe six
anahtfneended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30, Three Months Ended June 30,
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2021 2020 Change 2021 2020 Change

Management fees $ 3,413 % 2,645 % 768 $ 1,792 $ 1,268 $ 524
Overhead allocation 799 695 104 395 348 47
Accrued incentive compensation 625 (275) 900 261 161 100
Directors fees and liability insurance 595 508 87 323 248 75
Audit, legal and other professional fees 620 601 19 302 346 (44)
Direct REIT operating expenses 715 446 269 294 240 54
Other administrative 445 277 168 352 145 207
Total expenses $ 7,212 % 4,897 $ 2,315% 3,719% 2,756 $ 963

We are externally managed and advised by Bimini Advisors, LLC (the “Manager”) pursuantto the terms of a
agréea@gemedimanagement agreement has been renewed through February 20,2022 and provides for automatic
BPRAYRAEXERIMBPANG is subject to certain termination rights. Under the terms of the management agreement, the
Mapagsibie for administering the business activities and day-to-day operations ofthe Company. The Manager

FRaAlGSMenORiBIn the amount of:

One-twelfth of 1.5% of the first $250 million of the Company’s month end equity, as defined in the
DABRURMGNSROBNSAthe Company’s month end equity that is greater than $250 millionand less than or
AfNiBhicaH200

e One-twelfth of 1.00% of the Company’s month end equity that is greater than $500 million.

The Company is obligated to reimburse the Manager for any direct expenses incurred on its behalf and to pay the
Corﬁﬂﬁ%b?%ata portion of certain overhead costs set forth in the management agreement. Should the Company
IREREIEMEIR agreement without cause, it will pay the Manager a termination fee equal to three times the average
AR BERLEMERE management agreement, before or on the last day of the term ofthe agreement.

The following table summarizes the management fee and overhead allocation expensesfor each quarter in 2021
202t date and

(% in thousands)

Average Average Advisory Services

Orchid Orchid Management  Overhead
Three Months Ended MBS Equity Fee Allocation Total
June 30, 2021 $ 4,504,887% 542,679 $ 1,792 $ 395 $ 2,187
March 31, 2021 4,032,716 456,687 1,621 404 2,025
December 31, 2020 3,633,631 387,503 1,384 442 1,826
September 30, 2020 3,422,564 368,588 1,252 377 1,629
June 30, 2020 3,126,779 361,093 1,268 348 1,616
March 31, 2020 3,269,859 376,673 1,377 347 1,724
Six Months Ended
June 30, 2021 $ 4,268,801% 499,683 $ 3413 % 799 $ 4,212
June 30, 2020 3,198,319 368,883 2,645 695 3,340

Financial Condition:
Mortgage-Backed Securities

As of June 30, 2021, our RMBS portfolioconsisted of$4,671.2 millionof Agency RMBSat fair valueand had a
coupErobitets 8¢ 3¥8.06%. During the six monthsended June 30, 2021, we received principal repaymentsof $259.4
BB GAMBATRH e sixmonths endedJune 30, 2020. The averagethree month prepaymentspeeds forthe quarters
eodedhAdEBDwere 12.9%and 16.3%, respectively.

33



The followingtable presentsthe 3-month constantprepaymentrate (“CPR”)experienced onour structured
subaparfdligdyiBBan annualized basis, forthe quarterly periods presented. CPR is a method of expressingthe
paepymaemibrigage pool that assumesthat a constantfraction ofthe remaining principal is prepaid each month
S8pyeifically, the CPR in the chartbelow representsthe three month prepayment rate of the securitiesin the
cedpgotive asset

Structured

PT RMBS RMBS Total
Three Months Ended Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%) Portfolio (%)
June 30, 2021 10.9 29.9 12.9
March 31, 2021 9.9 40.3 12.0
December 31, 2020 16.7 44.3 20.1
September 30, 2020 14.3 40.4 17.0
June 30, 2020 13.9 35.3 16.3
March 31, 2020 9.8 22.9 11.9

The followingtables summarizecertain characteristicsof the Company’sPT RMBS andstructured RMBS as ofJune

DecédhBE23a120:

(% in thousands)

Weighted
Percentage Average
of Weighted Maturity
Fair Entire Average in Longest
Asset Category Value Portfolio Coupon Months Maturity
June 30, 2021
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 4,574,539 97.9% 2.97% 335 1-Jul-51
Total Mortgage-backed Pass-through 4,574,539 97.9% 2.97% 335 1-Jul-51
Interest-Only Securities 92,709 2.0% 3.63% 290 25-May-51
Inverse Interest-Only Securities 3,991 0.1% 3.79% 307 15-Jun-42
Total Structured RMBS 96,700 2.1% 3.64% 291 25-May-51
Total Mortgage Assets $ 4,671,239 100.0% 3.06% 329 1-Jul-51
December 31, 2020
Fixed Rate RMBS $ 3,560,746 95.5% 3.09% 339 1-Jan-51
Fixed Rate CMOs 137,453 3.7% 4.00% 312 15-Dec-42
Total Mortgage-backed Pass-through 3,698,199 99.2% 3.13% 338 1-Jan-51
Interest-Only Securities 28,696 0.8% 3.98% 268 25-May-50
Total Structured RMBS 28,696 0.8% 3.98% 268 25-May-50
Total Mortgage Assets $ 3,726,895 100.0% 3.19% 333 1-Jan-51
($ in thousands)
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Percentage of Percentage of
Agency Fair Value Entire Portfolio Fair Value Entire Portfolio
Fannie Mae $ 3,773,957 80.8%%$ 2,733,960 73.4%
Freddie Mac 897,282 19.2% 992,935 26.6%
Total Portfolio $ 4,671,239 100.0% 3,726,895 100.0%
June 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
Weighted Average Pass-through Purchase Price $ 107.37 $ 107.43
Weighted Average Structured Purchase Price $ 17.88 $ 20.06
Weighted Average Pass-through Current Price $ 106.65 $ 108.94
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Weighted Average Structured Current Price $ 14.48 $ 10.87
Effective Duratiéh 3.830 2.360

(1) Effective duration is the approximate percentage change in price for a 100 bps change in rates. An effective duration of 3.830
Inlicadesditaifease of 1.0% would be expected to cause a 3.830% decrease in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s
mvasi@ent pottiolian effective duration of 2.360 indicates that an interest rate increase of 1.0% would be expected to cause a
deifie¥se in the value of the RMBS in the Company’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2020. These figures include the
FHEEeHISRSUPLiIE80 not include the effect of the Company’s funding cost hedges. Effective duration quotes for individual
sHesi@EensArehe Yield Book, Inc.

The followingtable presentsa summary of portfolioassets acquiredduring the sixmonths ended June 30,
inclafRibesetd086s purchased duringthe period that settled after the end of the period, if any.

(% in thousands)

2021 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average
Total Cost Price Yield Total Cost Price Yield
Pass-through RMBS $ 2,910,318% 107.05 1.54% $ 1,985,756% 106.59 1.99%
Structured RMBS 76,546 15.42 3.98% - - -

Borrowings

As of June 30, 2021, we had establishedborrowingfacilitiesin the repurchaseagreement market witha number of
andSeRfREAtRANKStitutionsand had borrowingsin place with23 of these counterparties. None of theselenders are
@fﬁﬂ‘?’éﬁﬂwmﬁ@% borrowingsare securedby the Company’'sRMBS and cash, and bearinterestat prevailing market
Exebl¥RBfbBVRAHEe agreement borrowing facilities provide borrowingcapacity inexcess ofour needs.

As of June 30, 2021, we had obligationsoutstandingunder therepurchase agreements of approximately$4,514.7
weidritbenavidhay8Bbrrowing cost of 0.13%. The remaining maturity of our outstandingrepurchase agreementobligations
nrogayisomitht® weighted average remainingmaturity of29 days. Securing therepurchase agreementobligationsas of
AHOERRIBBW I an estimatedfair value, including accruedinterest, of approximately$4,678.1 millionand a weighted
8veragshinatuAly ehsh pledgedto counterpartiesof approximately$79.1 million. Through July30, 2021, we have been
sblerépnairiaétacilities with comparableterms to thosethat existedat June 30,2021 with maturities through August14,
2021.

The table below presents information about our period end, maximum and average balances of borrowings for
202¢36auaEAHIR020.

(% in thousands)

Difference Between Ending

Ending Maximum Average Borrowings and

Balance of Balance of Balance of Average Borrowings
Three Months Ended Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings Amount Percent
June 30, 2021 $ 4,514,704 $ 4,517,953 $ 4,348,192 $ 166,512 3.83%
March 31, 2021 4,181,680 4,204,935 3,888,633 293,047 7.54%
December 31, 2020 3,595,586 3,597,313 3,438,444 157,142 4.57%
September 30, 2020 3,281,303 3,286,454 3,228,021 53,282 1.65%
June 30, 2020 3,174,739 3,235,370 2,992,494 182,245 6.09%
March 31, 2020 2,810,250 4,297,621 3,129,178 (318,928) (10.19)%
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(1) The lower ending balance relative to the average balance during the quarter ended March 31, 2020 reflects the disposal of
BVIBSraledasdésio maintain cash and liquidity in response to the dislocations in the financial and mortgage markets resulting

Hoomdmeic impacts of COVID-19. During the quarter ended March 31, 2020, the Company’s investment in RMBS decreased
$642.1 million.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity isour abilityto turn non-cashassets intocash, purchaseadditionalinvestments, repay principaland interest
fun@®B\RAFHEAINEHll margincalls and pay dividends. Our principalimmediate sourcesof liquidityinclude cashbalances,
HE8BGUAMRIBFFowings under repurchaseagreements. Our borrowingcapacity willvary over timeas the marketvalue of
BHFitRy@Slsetsvaries. Our balance sheet also generates liquidity on an on-goingbasis throughpayments of principal
PIEHIVE ESHUERMBS portfolio. Managementbelieves thatwe currentlyhave sufficientliquidityand capital resources
avalairRirbfaldéi@onalinvestments consistentwith the sizeand nature of our existingRMBS portfolio, (b) the
ERRBKE N TRy PRHPVIARSdends to the extentrequired forour continued qualificationas a REIT. We may alsogenerate
{GHM@H%IHF’{Eourequity ordebt securitiesin public offeringsor private placements.

Because ourPT RMBS portfolioconsists entirelyof governmentand agency securities, we do notanticipate having
condgfwbﬁur assetsto cash shouldour liquidity needs everexceed ourimmediately available sources of cash. Our
plHesHERs SEVBRsists entirely ofgovernmentalagency securities, although theytypically do not tradewith comparablebid
PIskREBSAdsATever, we anticipatethat we wouldbe able toliquidate suchsecuritiesreadily, even indistressed markets,
HRMURBIF do so at pricesbelow wheresuch securitiescould be soldin a more stable market. To enhance our liquidity
N glediiRraisrtion of our structuredRMBS as partof a repurchaseagreement funding,but retainthe cash inlieu of
asaeisngRegiaRgiwe can, ata modest cost, retain higherlevels of cash on handand decreasethe likelihoodwe will
Raysiie SedARSRIRNIN orderto raise cash.

Our strategyfor hedgingour funding costs typicallyinvolves takingshort positionsin interestrate futures,treasury
swa‘b@??ﬁfei@@ﬁ%& 'S ptionsor other instruments.When the marketcauses these shortpositionsto declinein value we
pledentidrgitealls with cash. This can reduceour liquidity positionto the extentother securitiesin our portfoliomove in
HigalR rhor Ve¥ive enough cashvia margincalls to offsetthe derivativerelated margincalls. Ifthis wereto occur in
AdligiRO8e, the loss ofliquidity mightforce us toreduce the size of thelevered portfolio, pledge additionalstructured
ARGULTBR sk GeRating the portfoliowith less liquidity.

Our masterrepurchase agreements have no statedexpiration, but can beterminatedat any timeat our optionor at
couHieQRiBN AR ver, once a definitiverepurchase agreementunder a masterrepurchase agreementhas been
RIUSREIHO RNy eitherparty. A negotiatedterminationcan occur, butmay involve a fee tobe paid bythe party
§80HiNatéhe repurchaseagreementtransaction, as it did duringthe three months ended March 31, 2020.

Under ourrepurchase agreement fundingarrangements,we are requiredto post marginat the initiationof the
poshliaptiegehbsitaaigircut, which is apercentage of the marketvalue of the collateral pledged. To the extent the
Hyketvabieaiifigthe financingtransactiondeclines, the market value of our posted margin willbe insufficientand we
potbadenidrriiollateral. Conversely, ifthe marketvalue of theasset pledgedincreases invalue, wewould be over
oRl|aterRlizedinadiBave excessmargin returnedto us by thecounterparty. Our lenderstypically value our pledged
speurdiesdatietiacy ofour marginand make margincalls as needed,as do we. Typically, but not always, the parties
BN MIEEMIBUNEBr margin callsso as to avoidthe need fornuisance margincallsQur atsstg bagisichase agreements
do not specifythe haircut;rather haircutsare determinedon an individualrepurchase transactionbasis. Throughoutthe
simeanthsertdetircuts onour pledged collateral remained stableand as of June 30, 2021, our weightedaverage haircut
Besroximately 5.0% of thevalue of ourcollateral.

TBAs representa form of off-balance sheetfinancing andare accountedfor as derivativeinstruments. (See Note4 to

StatidnBRciAls Form 10-Q for additionaldetails onour TBAs). Under certainmarket conditions, it may be
uneconomicalfor us toroll our 36



TBAs intofuture monthsand we may need to take or make physicaldelivery ofthe underlyingsecurities. If we were
el teiakdyto settle along TBA, we would haveto fund ourtotal purchasecommitmentwith cash or other financing
RQUIGRP FESl88could be negativelyimpacted.

Our TBAs arealso subjectto marginrequirementsgoverned bythe Mortgage-BackedSecurities Division ("MBSD")of
by dherm¥stepsécurities forward transactionagreements, which may establish marginlevels inexcess of theMBSD.
Felefthier eiviti@asestablish an initial margin basedon the notionalvalue of the TBA, whichis subjectto increaseif the
gafimalieséritnabgiphatedfair value ofour pledged collateral declines. The MBSD hasthe sole discretionto determine
RALBIRPHRHE pledged collateral securing suchcontracts. In the eventof a margincall, we mustgenerally provide

aediional pokatesdoay.

Settlementof our TBAobligations by taking deliveryof the underlyingsecurities as well as satisfyingmargin
negﬁt%f&ﬁ%@@@@hﬂﬂquidity position. However, sincewe do notuse TBA dollarroll transactionsas our primarysource
BEfiBRAEEHENE will have adequate sourcesof liquidityto meet suchobligations.

As discussedearlier, we investa portion of our capitalin structured Agency RMBS. We generally do not apply
of olﬂvﬁbﬁﬁ&@“ﬂ%@v@ﬁgeinherent instructured securitiesreplaces the leverage obtainedby acquiring PT securities
anth&urshoedhasemarket. This structuredRMBS strategyhas been acore elementof the Company’soverall investment
HERISEYSIRRSvever, we haveand may continueto pledge a portion of our structuredRMBS in orderto raise ourcash
et bpleagaeiake securitiesin order toacquire additionalassets.

The followingtable summarizesthe effect onour liquidityand cash flowsfrom contractualobligationsfor repurchase
inte AEEEERPRINSSSN repurchaseagreements.

(in thousands)

Obligations Maturing
Within One One to Three Three to Five More than

Year Years Years Five Years Total
Repurchase agreements $ 4514704 $ - 3 -3 - $ 4514704
Interest expense on repurchase agrééments 1,516 - - - 1,516
Totals $ 4,516,220 $ - % -3 - $ 4,516,220

(1) Interest expenseon repurchase agreements isbased on currentinterest ratesas of June 30,2021 and theremaining termof the
HelHdiasayisting

In future periods, we expect to continueto finance our activitiesin a mannerthat is consistentwith our current
rep QREERIDAGIEERERS. As of June30, 2021, we had cashand cash equivalentsof $272.8 million. We generatedcash
FNW§ﬁff|%3ﬂ§r7ncipal andinterestpayments onour RMBS and had averagerepurchase agreements outstanding of
#oEIR MonillieeAdEaDune 30, 2021.

Stockholders’Equity

On January 23, 2020, we entered into the January 2020 Equity Distribution Agreementwith three sales agents
we BoUiRYdREIoWRISBII, from time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $200,000,000 of shares of our common stock
thatansacte@ned to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of 3,170,727
SERRMUBARD020 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of $19.8 million, and net proceeds of
gppIaXimedelyafter commissions and fees, prior to its termination in August 2020.

On August 4, 2020, we entered into the August 2020 Equity Distribution Agreement with four sales agents

couRHEHeRHria ¥dliChoVe time to time, up to an aggregate amount of $150,000,000 of shares of our common stock in
transactions that 37



were deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions. We issued a total of 27,493,650
Ayes PoPer Hakiity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $150.0 million, and net
RRABRAARAElY $147.4 million, after commissions and fees, prior to its termination in June 2021.

On January 20, 2021, we entered into the January 2021 Underwriting Agreementwith J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
relatidgidMRegame} and sale of 7,600,000 shares of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our
farowApdagiolirsiant to the January 2021 Underwriting Agreement at $5.20 per share. In addition, we granted J.P.
MAreRRARcHA%e up to an additional 1,140,000 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions,
wiuehisked iMAiBM January 21, 2021. The closing of the offering of 8,740,000 shares of our common stock occurred
202BWiYp#bceeds to us of approximately $45.2 million, net of offering expenses.

On March 2, 2021, we entered into the “March 2021 Underwriting Agreement with J.P. Morgan, relating to the offer
8,06mdFshates of our common stock. J.P. Morgan purchased the shares of our common stock from the Company
WWEb@th}ﬁderwﬂting Agreement at $5.45 per share. In addition, we granted J.P. Morgan a 30-day option to
BHEHIG8E! YUPAGBO00 shares of our common stock on the same terms and conditions, which J.P. Morgan exercised in
fidban Mirelbding of the offering of 9,200,000 shares of our common stock occurred on March5, 2021, with proceeds
HpproRimately $50.0 million, net of offering expenses payable.

On June 22, 2021, we entered into an equity distribution agreement (the “June 2021 Equity Distribution
saleRHgeRms PO Withfasrwhich we may offer and sell, from time to time, up to an aggregate amountof $250,000,000
ebatasROEKIN transactions that are deemed to be “at the market” offerings and privately negotiated transactions.
2bpaugild8gedPa total of 5,750,000 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution Agreement for aggregate gross
BpeRARAEly $31.1 million, and net proceeds of approximately $30.6 million, after commissionsand fees.
SopsetieHriudinrIBO30, 2021, we issued a total of 5,560,000 shares under the June 2021 Equity Distribution

AGHPEHREYRIss proceeds of approximately $28.6 million, and net proceeds of approximately $28.2 million, after
f&wgmissions and

Outlook
Economic Summary

The economy continued its strong recoveryfrom the COVID-19pandemic duringthe second quarterof
in QOYID-TReasegethat occurredduring the firstquarter of 2021 abated quicklyas inoculations of the new
vagelpelstebeited throughout the population —especially to those mostsusceptible to the virus. New COVID-19
basedalizationsand deaths fromthe virus decreaseddramatically, allowingthe economyto reopen and
dehssaotiahpdietpapt of consumersto be unleashed. Additionalfiscal policy steps taken by the Biden
ddeunisthbeigasadded to the surge in economicactivity.

The economicdata releasedthroughout the second quarterprovided evidence of the recovery. Retail
sales|ed; wapekily batel demand, surged. Home salesgrew at a pacethat exceededthe early 2000s. Home
pricedniae#o@sls seen in the early2000s as well, eventually leadingto a slow downin home salesand price
epfyedatsofithin¢hird quarter as elevatedhome pricesbecame an impedimentto new sales. As the demand
fordhsamyigessisrged, the lingering effects of the pandemicacted to retard supply, leading to price increases.
Bopelyashplntpeterchips in the case of autosand consumer electronics could not keep up with demand.
Shoneaises like lumberin the case ofhousing, and labor generally, constrained the economy’s ability to meet
dameEindd lcalbstrainedas workers either were content to collectsupplemental unemploymentinsurance
ae\bla ditelyedielgislation, where fearful of excess exposureto COVID-19 (especiallyin the case of leisure
adkeospiatiye to thelack of accessto childcare, and thus unableto return towork. Gross domesticproduct,
es@Ddad to have expandedat an 8.0% annualizedrate duringthe second quarterof 2021. Importantly, the
supplgrmasdtionedabove, coupledwith an expansionin the monetarybase driven by both fiscaland
monetary policy (the 38



Fed’s monthly asset purchases), has driven inflationhigher. The consumer price index, or CPI, has
aoEHearedyeaneasi$farthe firsttime since 2008. The lone disappointmentover the periodhas been job
gremtibnaed above. The marketanticipatesthis may change somewhat whenthe supplementalunemployment
barlgfiedesdiar, but the rapid emergence ofthe delta variantof COVID-19 may keep job growth recovery
brimetatiyksbeyond September.

Legislative Response andthe Federal Reserve

Congress passedthe CARES Actquickly inresponse tothe pandemic’semergence lastspring and
additboakkbgithationover the ensuingmonths. However, as certainprovisions of the CARES Act expired, such
gapplemental unemploymentinsurance lastJuly, there appearedto be a needfor additional stimulus forthe
wdthnitie sto gkeial the pandemicthat occurred as cold weatherset in, particularlyover the Christmasholiday. As
abv@thd Federalgovernment eventuallypassed an additionalstimulus packagein late Decemberof 2020
Mataygaiiln2?1. In addition, the Fed has provided,and continuesto provide, as much supportto the markets
andt ttenewdhirthe constraintsof its mandate. During the thirdquarter of 2020, the Fed unveileda new
fremetagybfdimysed on averageinflation ratetargeting thatallows the Fed Funds rateto remain quitelow, even
ihiptatiodh i® temporarilysurpass the 2% target level. Further, the Fed will look past the presence of very tight
Himrldndrdketse present atthe time. This marks a significant shift fromtheir prior policy framework, which was
fomrapibymribet rate as a keyindicator ofimpending inflation. Adherence tothis policy could steepenthe U.S.
Asestsoiyermaeates could remain low for a considerable period but longer-termrates could rise given the Fed’s
inflenittonpotentiallyrun above 2%in the future as the economymore fully recovers. The response ofU.S.
aApprsund ate®llowthis pattern precisely during the firstquarter of 2021 but have sincereversed sinceearly in
thessoazoP 1.

Interest Rates

As economic activity andinflation acceleratedduring the secondquarter of 2021, market participants
rateavoipltedimireuesio riseas they had doneduring the first quarter of the year. This was mostevident in the
tpendritarettiB. Treasuryfutures — namelythe level of contracts shorted. However, interestrates did not
trenBegenid Mgaiterof 2021. In fact, overthe course ofthe quarter, longerterm interestrates declined slowly —
the2da3dps the 10-year U.S. Treasury noteand 32.5 bpsin the case of the 30-yearU.S. Treasurybond. Since
tptegdrarelacceleratedtheir decline, especially so as the deltavariant of COVID-19has appeared tospread at
eatacueissatiogh the U.S. and the globe. The driver of the counter-intuitivemovement inrates was likelythe
fastdtoféschaikalt positioningwas so skewedto the shortside and there simply were few if any additional
dadbgrpoirtiimg job growth figures have also been pointedto as evidencethe marketmay have beenoverly
opgnistiidaldtidrezonomicrecovery. More recently, the rapid spread of the deltavariant of COVID-19 is
pausifgantatieower theirnear-term growth estimates —both for the U.S. and globally.

The Fed has playeda role inthe evolution of interestrates overthe course ofthe quarteras well. The most
deveigmifieamthas been the Fed's insistence, at least fromthe FOMC leadership,that the inflationarypressures
ewslentin thé be transitory. The Fed arguesthat COVID-19related supply constraints are driving most price
prasaatestyamost relatedto the opening of the economy— travel, diningout, housing, etc. — is causingprice
ressigesveldeidand, demandthat should subside as theeconomy returnsto normal levelsof activity.
Sirhstast@ktptaled a rolein the Fed's viewin that directpayments to consumers relatedto the variousrelief
peessaddy Congresswere one timein nature andtheir effectwill fade. Market pricing, or the level of interest
lanesterspeatallyseems to indicatethe market agreeswith this pointof view. However, at the conclusionof the
FQMGEMetingrket was surprised tolearn that whilethe leadership of the Fed maintainedthis view, not all
FeMBedidofthere were membersof the committeethat believedinflation may not be transitory, and that as a
vesulld thaxfeetd raise interestrates soonerthan previouslythought and beginto taper theirasset purchases
srket adaevptbt@tdethese developmentsas a hawkishshift on the part of the Fed, althoughthe leadership of the
ésmbeially Chairman Powell- has pushed back againstthis interpretationand insiststhe Fed’s stance has not
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The Agency RMBS Market

Performance for the Agency RMBS marketfor the second quarter trailed most otherasset classes,
Theegpetialiysoan thendgency RMBS sub-indexwas 0.33% forthe quarter. As mentioned above, at the
danelEIMOfritextingit was evidentthat not allcommittee membersshared the viewof the Fed leadershipthat
Heeoemovditibn was still far off — or that the recovery wasfar from complete. There were members who
thoulght dive Fethper theirasset purchasesand eventuallyraise short-terminterest ratesmuch sooner. For the
Ageket REBSeant Fed purchasesof $40 billionper month mightbe ending soonerthan most market
Padieipaaseysectied . housing market added credence tothe notion thatthe Fed did not need to continueto
thevitkrkepanititmger as well. Given the lengthof time the Fed has been supportingthe Agency RMBS
baanketthed grkesiiveithwith deposits thatneed to be invested,price levelsin the Agency RMBS marketwere quite
dehelvpnienhisVhile all sectors of the financial marketsappear to be priced at the high end of long-term price
rangesltibésuch a large buyer of Agency RMBS likelywould have a negativeeffect on theirvaluations. The
toaHespodsntacteldwer Fed purchases of Agency RMBS, leading to therelative under-performanceof the
Agekey RiviBSthe second quarterof 2021.

The second driverof Agency RMBS performance, both for the second quarterof 2021 and beyond, is, as
of prbpaysthidevd the markethas rallied— especiallylong-term rates— rates availableto borrowersare now
baehtiastweisimer, and burn-outhas yet to developin higher coupon, more seasoned mortgages. This has
bpeaifagpmtMgremiums, a core holding of the Company.

Recent Legislativeand Regulatory Developments

The Fed conductedlarge scale overnight repo operations from late 2019 until July2020 to address
Tred®rptigerioytiebt. 8nd Agency MBS financingmarkets. These operations ceasedin July 2020 after the
saotedbfully tamed volatile funding coststhat had threatenedto cause disruptionacross the financial system.

The Fed has takena number of other actionsto stabilize markets as a result ofthe impacts ofthe COVID-
MarkhpsfrzE20iehke Fed announceda $700 billionasset purchase program to provide liquidityto the U.S.
Rid&simandkisgEhey-ed alsolowered the Fed Funds rateto a range of0.0% — 0.25%, after having already
Fewvere ddbes yeeD bps earlierin the month. Later that samemonth the Fed announced a program toacquire
b8 . AgsamyriR8BSin the amounts needed to supportsmooth marketfunctioning. With these purchases,
mmgricated rsdikistantially. Currently, the Fed is committed to purchasing $80 billion of U.S. Treasuriesand $40
BiMl@SoéAgenoynth. Chairman Powelland the Fed havereiterated theircommitmentto this level of asset
meetingesia¢etrasly meetingon June 30, 2020. At the June 2021 meeting,the Fed agreedto begin todiscuss
plijosfiog the path and compositionof asset purchases,but reiteratedthe intentionto provide notice wellin
adwanee@immtto reduce the pace of such purchases. ChairmanPowell has also maintainedthat the Fed
expesss tatewan this leveluntil the Fedis confidentthat the economyhas weatheredthe pandemicand its
aopeity@ndc®partiack to achieve its maximum employmentand price stabilitygoals. The Fedhas taken
gappusaibrasiefsdofixedincome markets,to support mortgage servicers and to implementvarious portions of
Beronavirus Aid, Relief,and Economic Security (“CARES")Act.

The CARES Actwas passed by Congress and signed intolaw on March 27, 2020. This over$2 trillion
bill, @@idherathezltbings, provided fordirect paymentsto each Americanmaking up to$75,000 a year,
uneeegdegiment benefits forup to four months(on top of state benefits), fundingto hospitalsand health
prosatersnisaodasithesses, states and municipalitiesand grants tothe airlineindustry. On April 24, 2020,
Bipwdesmt Tadditionalfunding billinto law that provided an additional $484 billion of funding to individuals,small
huspitdsehealthcare providersand additional coronavirustesting efforts. Various provisions of the CARES Act
brpme o July 2020, includinga moratoriumon evictions, expanded unemploymentbenefits, anda moratorium
omfarenies 8020, President Trump issued Executive Order 13945, directing the Department of Health and
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the Centersfor Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC"),the Departmentof Housing and Urban Development,
Begartment ofthe Treasury totake measuresto temporarily halt residential evictions and foreclosures,
teohpdiragytHnoaigtialassistance.

On December27, 2020, anadditional $900billion coronavirusaid package wassigned intolaw as part of
ApprepGiatiseddatest 2021, providing forextensions of many of the CARES Act policiesand programsas well
ediafiditiezdckage providedfor, among other things,direct paymentsto most Americanswith a grossincome
s eeSOharyear, extensionof unemploymentbenefits throughMarch 14, 2021, funding for procurement of
peodidesaldheadiilyualified businesses, funding for rental assistanceand funding forschools. OnJanuary 29,
B3Pedtigaid@®e extending evictionmoratoriums for covered personsthrough March31, 2021, whichhas been
duter3de@@R1. In addition, on February 9, 2021, the FHFA announced thatthe foreclosure moratoriumbegun
ardREAct forloans backed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and the evictionmoratoriumfor real estate
bMaecahioyHraddie Mac were extendeduntil March31, 2021, whichhas been extendedto July 31,2021. On
fFebuaydibugdydand Urban DevelopmentDepartmentannounced the extension ofthe FHA evictionand
focratosuma to June 30, 2021, which has beenextended toJuly 31, 2021.

On March 11, 2021, the $1.9 trillion American RescuePlan Act of 2021 was signedinto law. This stimulus
furtheogatie Federal government'sefforts to stabilizethe economy and provide assistanceto sectors ofthe
pofietatpfrstiithe various physical and economic effects of the pandemic.

In January 2019,the Trump administrationmade statements of its plansto work with Congress to overhaul
andHanenidibdac and expectationsto announce a framework for the developmentof a policy for
toanmehefsivesoousi@yn September30, 2019, the FHFA announced thatFannie Mae and Freddie Mac were
altreasdcheir capital buffersto $25 billionand $20 billion, respectively, fromthe prior limitof $3 billioneach.
Uhisstiegy deattito Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac being privatizedand representsthe firstconcrete stepon the
refuttn. @EJune 30, 2020, the FHFA releaseda proposed ruleon a new regulatoryframework for the GSEs
inptdnseekibodh a risk-based capital frameworkand minimum leverage capital requirements. The final ruleon
fremewodafitahe GSEswas publishedin the federalregister inDecember 2020. On January 14,2021, the
thesFHEAsaxeeun@d letter agreementsallowing the GSEs to continueto retain capitalup to theirregulatory
niffensinas, prelsctibgdin the Decemberrule. These letteragreements provide,in part, (i)there will be no exit
fronservatorshipuntil all materiallitigation issettled and the GSE has commonequity Tier 1 capital of at least
anotbkeits 8Esatd] comply with the FHFA's regulatory capital framework, (iii) higher-risk single-family mortgage
beqeisitiotesitdl currentlevels, and (iv)the U.S. Treasuryand the FHFA will establish a timelineand processfor
feforenG3&wever, no definitive proposals orlegislation have been releasedor enacted with respectto ending
tiemservatorship, unwinding the GSEs, or materiallyreducing theroles of the GSEs in the U.S. mortgage
paitkePi®sideneBi8en removedthe director of the FHFA and appointedan acting director. With theleadership
ElHfiyesame observersanticipate thatthe Biden administrationwill be lesslikely to focuson ending the GSESs’
andseatessizipuary 14,2021 letteragreements betweenthe U.S. Treasuryand the FHFA may be
renegotiated.

In 2017, policymakersannounced thatLIBOR willbe replaced by December 31,2021. The directivewas
factsihatrbdblysthee uncomfortable contributing to the LIBOR panel given the shortage of underlying
brassdetiolssordwihnécletbility associated with submitting an unfounded level. The ICE Benchmark Administration,
asitsdeaipéstitytor of USD LIBOR, has confirmedthat it will cease publicationof (i) the one-week and two-month
sng8iDiRnediatelyfollowing the LIBOR publicationon December 31, 2021, and (ii) the overnightand one,
thorehs DAL IBOR settings immediatelyfollowing the LIBOR publicationon June 30, 2023. A joint statement
hytkeyitiegeaiteryn banksto cease enteringinto new contractsthat use USD LIBOR as a referencerate by no
kezdtharer 31,2021, The Alternative Reference Rates Committee, a steering committeecomprised oflarge
lnSitfiiansjdlas proposedreplacing USD-LIBORwith a new SOFR, a rate basedon U.S. repotrading. Many
trankis iheljeske four tofive yearsto completethe transitionto SOFR, forcertain, despitethe 2021 deadline. We
aiergeniice tbighis new rate carefully asit will potentiallybecome the newbenchmarkfor hedges anda range
pivettrashtatdt this time, however, no consensusexists as towhat rate orrates may becomeaccepted
alternativesto LIBOR.

Effective Januaryl1, 2021, Fannie Mae, in alignmentwith Freddie Mac, willextend the timeframefor its
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buyout policyfor Single-Family Uniform Mortgage-BackedSecurities (UMBS) and Mortgage-BackedSecurities
{MB Shieacutivelymissed monthly payments to twenty-four consecutively missed monthly payments (i.e.,24
cum)thBhissew timeframe will apply to outstanding single-family pools and newlyissued single-familypools and
rediefitetl when January 2021 factors werereleased onthe fourth businessday in February2021.

For Agency RMBSinvestors, whena delinquentloan is boughtout of a pool of mortgage loans, the
frometine el ofithihdosame as a total prepaymentof the loan. The respective GSEs currently anticipate,
Heliveyegntiains will be repurchasedin most casesbefore the 24-monthdeadline underone of the following
brtmptions listed

« a loan that ispaid in full,or where therelated lienis released and/or the note debt is satisfied orforgiven;

« a loan repurchasedby a seller/servicerunder applicable selling and servicing requirements;

* a loan enteringa permanentmodification, which generallyrequires itto be removedfrom the MBS. During
modifigation trial period, the loan willremain in the MBS until the trial period ends;

* a loan subjectto a short saleor deed-in-lieuof foreclosure;or

* a loan referredto foreclosure.

Because of theseexceptions, the GSEs currentlybelieve based on prevailingassumptions and market
chacgedititihstiesonly a marginal impacton prepaymentspeeds, in aggregate.Cohort levelimpacts may vary.
Frorexbenplealfof loans referredto foreclosure are historicallyreferred withinsix months of delinquency. The
dpgesistareiiffacted depends on delinquency levels, borrowerresponse, andreferral toforeclosure timelines.

The scope and nature of theactions the U.S. governmentor the Fed willultimately undertake are unknown
consindevilb evolve,especiallyin light ofthe COVID-19 pandemic, PresidentBiden’s new administrationand the
et € Umires States.

Effect on Us

Regulatory developments, movements ininterest ratesand prepaymentrates affectus in manyways,
follomdhgtingthe

Effects on our Assets

A change in orelimination of the guarantee structure of Agency RMBS may increase our costs (if, for
feeexarnpdsa) wanatere us to change ourinvestment strategy altogether. For example, the elimination of the
guracamtef Agency RMBS may cause usto change ourinvestmentstrategy tofocus on non-Agency RMBS,
wbidlbiretyuine us to significantlyincrease our monitoring ofthe credit risksof our investmentsin additionto

priepayimziet aisds.

Lower long-terminterest rates can affect the value of our Agency RMBSin a number of ways. If
relapredpionefduatés paet, to the refinancing problems describedabove), lowerlong-term interestrates can
ofdiggsertoeyadimgency RMBS. This is becauseinvestors typicallyplace a premiumon assets withyields that
aua keg lyeldsaAlthough lowerlong-term interestrates may increaseasset valuesin our portfolio,we may not
hevalblentts imastilarly-yieldingassets.

If prepaymentlevels increase,the value of our Agency RMBS affected by such prepaymentsmay decline.
a piimispial pespaygment acceleratesthe effective term of an AgencyRMBS, whichwould shortenthe period
thuésgoviviciuliteceive above-marketreturns (assumingthe yield onthe prepaid asset is higherthan market
prelfaymidsd proceedsmay not be ableto be reinvestedin similar-yieldingassets. Agency RMBS backed by
hightgagesstitites are more susceptibleto prepaymentrisk because holders of those mortgages are most likely
o oeferarate.i®s and 110s, however, may be thetypes of Agency RMBS mostsensitive toincreased
Bexgzaysaahe dtelsler of an 10 orllO receivesno principal payments, the values of I0sand 110s are entirely

dependenton the 0



existence ofa principalbalance on the underlying mortgages. Ifthe principalbalance iseliminated dueto
pepapsamidilybacome worthless. Althoughincreased prepaymentrates can negativelyaffect the value of our
texs,anaviéQie opposite effecton POs. Because POs act like zero-coupon bonds, meaningthey are purchased
Higrgiscaahitoand have an effective interestrate based onthe discountand the termof the underlyingloan, an
preeaget rateswould reduce the effective term of our POs and acceleratethe yields earned on those
aEseEsevicimebcdome.

Higher long-termrates can alsoaffect the value of our Agency RMBS. As long-termrates rise, rates
borevadebkdsm rise. This tends to cause prepaymentactivityto slow and extend the expectedaverage life of
floovkyalye taslexpected average life of the mortgage cash flowsincreases, coupled with higher discountrates,
garadyeRMBS declines. Some of the instrumentsthe Company uses to hedge our Agency RMBS assets,
satehfatiee@saps and swaptions,are stable averagelife instruments. This meansthat to the extentwe use
s bledtptrooeigency RMBS assets, our hedges may notadequately protectus from price declines, and
tregatmedyniapactour book value. It is for thisreason we use interest only securitiesin our portfolio. As interest
edesatied dlverage life of these securitiesincreases, causinggenerally positive price movementsas the number
eashstieafitheease the longer the underlyingmortgages remainoutstanding. This makesinterest only
bedgetiestasieattiefor pass-through Agency RMBS.

As described above, the AgencyRMBS marketbegan to experience severe dislocationsin mid-March 2020
the azamamidt blealth and marketturmoil broughtabout by COVID-19.In March of 2020, the Fed announced
phwathasmiligency RMBS and U.S. Treasuries inthe amounts neededto supportsmooth marketfunctioning,
wthioidactbly Agency RMBS market, a commitmentit reaffirmed at all subsequentFed meetings. At the June
gePEattarepdto begin todiscuss plansfor adjustingthe path and composition of asset purchases, but
teifrmtiedthetiotentibiin advance of an announcementto reduce the pace of suchpurchases. If the Fed
suiéedgdgyeestmses of Agency RMBS, our investmentportfolio couldbe negativelyimpacted. Further, the
focratosumresand evictions described above will likely delay potentialdefaults on loansthat would otherwisebe
boeplely MBS poolsas describedabove. Depending onthe ultimate resolution of the foreclosureor evictions,
otmmrgritetie loans may beremoved fromthe pool intowhich they were securitized. If this wereto occur, it
effedt bbdeltydng a prepaymenton the Company’ssecurities until such time. As the majority of the Company’s
asmatsywWeMBSquired ata premiumto par, this willtend to increasethe realizedyield on the asset in question.

Because we baseour investmentdecisions onrisk managementprinciples rather than anticipated
ratepovemaitsiia interestrate environmentwe may allocate more capitalto structured Agency RMBS with
Wetetievmtivese securities have a lower sensitivityto changes inlong-terminterest ratesthan other asset
alesgr. toVimitiggte our exposureto changes inlong-terminterest rateshby investingin 10s and 110s, which
tiffealhtis@vssitivitiesto changes inlong-term interestrates than PTRMBS, particularlyPT RMBS backed by

fixedgages.
Effects on ourborrowing costs

We leverage our PT RMBS portfolioand a portion of our structured Agency RMBS with principalbalances
of sthootghteepaechase agreementtransactions. The interestrates on ourdebt are determinedby the short
taarketterdntrateease inthe Fed Fundsrate or LIBORwould increase our borrowing costs, which could affect
sprézieiéshaatds no correspondingincrease inthe interestwe earn on ourassets. Thiswould be most
prevaiemoyiRiviBPbeictced by fixedrate mortgageloans becausethe interestrate on afixed-rate mortgage
reamd@esveot though market ratesmay change.

In order to protect our net interestmargin againstincreases inshort-terminterest rates,we may enterinto

swaptgresiiciieconomically convert our floating-rate repurchase agreementdebt to fixed-ratedebt, or utilize
otseuimetgesyich as Eurodollar, Fed Funds and T-Note futures contracts orinterest rate swaptions.
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Summary

In contrastto the four quartersthat precededthe second quarterof 2021, COVID-19did not suppressthe
the pesftetsaoe eConomyin the second quarter. The recoveryhas been drivenby many factors— the
widesreeelatistributionof a very effectivevaccine, substantialgovernment stimulusand accommodative
suometany reamyerBaeapidly as an effective vaccineallowed pent-updemand to leadto a surge in demand for
gendsasntiieled furtherby multiple rounds of stimuluschecks and numerousother means of financial support
povddadbyttneinancial marketsare benefiting from extremelyloose financial conditions, abundantliquidity,
highaiskie@rablealemand forreturns. The constraintthat both limitsthe level of activity andis a driver of price
ingesimg €cbiof the pandemicon labor force participation— or lack thereof. A significantpart of the price
dressytheobseorethuarter wasdriven by supplyshortages, whichare in turndriven by under-staffedproducers
gbeatsoasd services. This constraintshould be slowlyremoved overthe balance of2021 barringa resurgence
phtitemic.

The economicdata released during the secondquarter tellsthe story quitewell. GDP is estimatedto have
8.0&xpandelitagdrate. The housing marketis strongerthan the days before the financialcrisis in the late 2000s
ehbibth muebmisof homes soldand average prices— which are up over 23% yearover year inJune 2021 versus
thaeaXe20fiaxistinghome sales. Price pressuresare evident, due to the combinationof constrained supply
ahisustedeamthd — driven by a strong combinationof pent-up demand and governmentstimulus. The CPI
m@eadeygbapnoekr year inJune as well. The Fed hasinsisted these price pressuresare temporary, andthe
agrde tageebos tbe level oflong-termU.S. Treasuryrates. However, not allmembers of the FOMC or market
pgreeipdinise the disagreementstems fromthe length oftime the price pressures are present in the market, it
oyllthe nesmhyEbsage of time.

Returns for the Agency RMBS market trailed most other sectors of the financial markets, both fixed
equitiesnoe higvglels The driver was the prospect the Fed would begin to taper their asset purchases as the
ey, filys was especially the case in June, after the Fed concluded their FOMC meeting and revealed
theeegease in views of committee members regarding the timing of this step. While Fed leadership
stlimtalhmtbithstépise, the robustness of the housing market coupled with the growing divergence of views
wabipribegtetbr the markets to begin to price in a reduction in Fed asset purchases. A second factor hurting
the salbton Veamy-term interest rates that confounded many market participants. Rates available to borrowers
mrectmpkavalent during the summer of 2020 and refinancing activity has re-accelerated, delaying once more
higineowolmpon, more seasoned loans and driving premiums for specified pools slightly higher.

Critical Accounting Estimates

Our condensed financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP. GAAP requires our
sonmar@geierio suwiective decisions and assessments. Our most critical accounting estimates involve
desesemeatslwhich could significantly affect reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. There have
beanges to our critical accounting estimates as discussed in our annual report on Form 10-K for the year
snpedddecember
Capital Expenditures

At June 30, 2021, we had no material commitments for capital expenditures.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At June 30, 2021, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Dividends
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In addition to other requirements that must be satisfied to qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual
stockwidieletls td atlieast 90% of our REIT taxable income, determined without regard to the deduction for
dikctietidg paidraatccapital gains. REIT taxable income (loss) is computed in accordance with the Code, and
treanbesr greatdran our financial statement net income (loss) computed in accordance with GAAP. These book
thffeasences primarily relate to the recognition of interest income on RMBS, unrealized gains and losses on
BRivid 8z atiwhtbélosses on derivative instruments that are treated as funding hedges for tax purposes.

We intend to pay regular monthly dividends to our stockholders and have declared the following
conglédiemdsf ncéRme

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Per Share

Year Amount Total

2013 $ 1.395% 4,662
2014 2.160 22,643
2015 1.920 38,748
2016 1.680 41,388
2017 1.680 70,717
2018 1.070 55,814
2019 0.960 54,421
2020 0.790 53,570
2021 - YTD 0.455 45,460
Totals $ 12.110%$ 387,423

(1) On July 14, 2021, the Company declared a dividend of $0.065 per share to be paid on August 27, 2021. The effect of this
fhvicke rabie inbldg tbut is not reflected in the Company'’s financial statements as of June 30, 2021.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive in nature. As a result, interest rates and
influghee faotqserformance far more so than does inflation. Changes in interest rates do not necessarily
oulatilaneratgl or changes in inflation rates. Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with GAAP
drstrifnutions will be determined by our Board of Directors consistent with our obligation to distribute to our
kaskBOlieos$ atir REIT taxable income on an annual basis in order to maintain our REIT qualification; in each
aateitiesrand balance sheet are measured with reference to historical cost and/or fair market value without
cdlatidaring

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in market factors such as interest rates,
exclfaagm ratieercymmodity prices and equity prices. The primary market risks that we are exposed to are
priepeghmate risk, spread risk, liquidity risk, extension risk and counterparty credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary and tax policies,
intedioatiestat acdnomic and political considerations and other factors beyond our control.

Changes in the general level of interest rates can affect our net interest income, which is the difference
intebestvieenitie earned on interest-earning assets and the interest expense incurred in connection with our
listeii@mshdgrafecting the spread between our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

Changes in the level of 4



interest rates can also affect the rate of prepayments of our securities and the value of the RMBS that
ooresitoenoportfolio, which affects our net income, ability to realize gains from the sale of these assets and
ahiitthéodmaouy, that we can borrow against these securities.

We may utilize a variety of financial instruments in order to limit the effects of changes in interest rates on
operations. The principal instruments that we use are futures contracts, interest rate swaps and swaptions.
iistgeMents are intended to serve as an economic hedge against future interest rate increases on our
egpoeghaaeborrowings. Hedging techniques are partly based on assumed levels of prepayments of our
pepapniRlB Srdfslower or faster than assumed, the life of the Agency RMBS will be longer or shorter, which
theuddfeetiueness of any hedging strategies we may use and may cause losses on such transactions.
ediing strateggesft derivative securities are highly complex and may produce volatile returns. Hedging
timciedihng shereddsorelating to REIT qualification. In order to preserve our REIT status, we may be forced to
terdyimjeransaction at a time when the transaction is most needed.

Our profitability and the value of our investment portfolio (including derivatives used for hedging
adveusphseffpotayl baring any period as a result of changing interest rates, including changes in the forward
yield curve.

Our portfolio of PT RMBS s typically comprised of adjustable-rate RMBS (“ARMSs"), fixed-rate RMBS and
adjinstatide-rate RMBS. We generally seek to acquire low duration assets that offer high levels of protection
praapayorégag @rovided that they are reasonably priced by the market. Although the duration of an individual
elsepeams a result of changes in interest rates, we strive to maintain a hedged PT RMBS portfolio with an
effestvehenraimhe stated contractual final maturity of the mortgage loans underlying our portfolio of PT
RMES gener 8i0yyears. However, the effect of prepayments of the underlying mortgage loans tends to
shshdiowwefresubinginvestments substantially. Prepayments occur for various reasons, including refinancing
ofartgbegBsnand loan payoffs in connection with home sales, and borrowers paying more than their scheduled
[myments, which accelerates the amortization of the loans.

The duration of our 10 and IlO portfolios will vary greatly depending on the structural features of the
prepagaréisaciitiijewill always affect the cash flows associated with the securities, the interest only nature
ohi@s thair durations to become extremely negative when prepayments are high, and less negative when
[mepBreeaysranmets affect the durations of 110s similarly, but the floating rate nature of the coupon of 110s
(elaie iwitvetegBl of one month LIBOR) causes their price movements, and model duration, to be affected
bytbhamregesiments and one month LIBOR, both current and anticipated levels. As a result, the duration of

Hdcseauyitesathll

Prepayments on the loans underlying our RMBS can alter the timing of the cash flows from the
As andsdlfjngd agnmyothe. interest rate sensitivity of our assets by measuring their effective duration. While
mediigesithatimite sensitivity of a bond to movements in interest rates, effective duration captures both the
mteresteates and the fact that cash flows to a mortgage related security are altered when interest rates
wioer .tAe conlireglyjnterest rate on a mortgage loan is substantially above prevailing interest rates in the
thaekedntbesftectiies collateralized by such loans can be quite low because of expected prepayments.

We face the risk that the market value of our PT RMBS assets will increase or decrease at different rates
ourtsodhaedfRMBS or liabilities, including our hedging instruments. Accordingly, we assess our interest
estinnisstirigythe duration of our assets and the duration of our liabilities. We generally calculate duration using
parigundliets. However, empirical results and various third party models may produce different duration
samberscimitibs.

The following sensitivity analysis shows the estimated impact on the fair value of our interest rate-
ancskedip@osiestmastef June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, assuming rates instantaneously fall 200
bps, fall 50Mps, rise 50 bps, rise 100 bps and rise 200 bps, adjusted to reflect the impact of convexity, which
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of the sensitivity of our hedge positions and Agency RMBS’ effective duration to movements in interest
rates.

All changes in value in the table below are measured as percentage changes from the investment
net pedéilicaleduat dmel base interest rate scenario. The base interest rate scenario assumes interest rates
projguipayeseeof June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

Actual results could differ materially from estimates, especially in the current market environment. To the
thesxtestinietes or other assumptions do not hold true, which is likely in a period of high price volatility,
hlotya bifeultsatgitially from projections and could be larger or smaller than the estimates in the table below.
tifieeenemddels were employed in the analysis, materially different projections could result. Lastly, while the
tefiectethe estimated impact of interest rate increases and decreases on a static portfolio, we may from time
t toreagelhaysecurities as a part of the overall management of our investment portfolio.

Interest Rate Sensititlity

Portfolio

Market Book
Change in Interest Rate Valu@®) Valu@®)
As of June 30, 2021
-200 Basis Points (0.71)% (6.01)%
-100 Basis Points 0.27% 2.26%
-50 Basis Points 0.37% 3.12%
+50 Basis Points (0.96)% (8.09)%
+100 Basis Points (2.37)% (19.96)%
+200 Basis Points (5.88)% (49.61)%
As of December 31, 2020
-200 Basis Points 2.43% 21.85%
-100 Basis Points 1.35% 12.08%
-50 Basis Points 0.69% 6.18%
+50 Basis Points (0.90)% (8.03)%
+100 Basis Points (2.39)% (21.42)%
+200 Basis Points (6.60)% (59.22)%

(1) Interest rate sensitivity is derived from models that are dependent on inputs and assumptions provided by third parties as well
bMabggenr, and assumes there are no changes in mortgage spreads and assumes a static portfolio. Actual results could differ
thetariediirfiates.

(2) Includes the effect of derivatives and other securities used for hedging purposes.

(3) Estimated dollar change in investment portfolio value expressed as a percent of the total fair value of our investment portfolio

(4) Bstorhsteth dizltar change in portfolio value expressed as a percent of stockholders' equity as of such date.

In addition to changes in interest rates, other factors impact the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive
suctmegstireestispe of the yield curve, market expectations as to future interest rate changes and other
Acckedinghditiotie event of changes in actual interest rates, the change in the fair value of our assets would
tiketysddten fibove and such difference might be material and adverse to our stockholders.

Prepayment Risk

Because residential borrowers have the option to prepay their mortgage loans at par at any time, we face
we thil egbéhiaince a return of principal on our investments faster than anticipated. Various factors affect the
ratetghgdiolepayments occur, including changes in the level of and directional trends in housing prices,
gderrsl sdespmic conditions, loan age and size, loan-to-value ratio, the location of the property and social
aoddigonsg regidiktonally, changes to government sponsored entity underwriting practices or other
gouklrisersajmifiegraiysmpact prepayment rates or expectations. Generally, prepayments on Agency RMBS
penedsetitalligg mortgage interest rates and decrease during periods of rising mortgage interest rates.
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not always be the case. We may reinvest principal repayments at a yield that is lower or higher than the
inelesbmehg thpsaidffecting our net interest income by altering the average yield on our assets.

Spread Risk

When the market spread widens between the yield on our Agency RMBS and benchmark interest rates,
valwricaeldbdegline if the value of our Agency RMBS falls by more than the offsetting fair value increases on
mstiuedging tied to the underlying benchmark interest rates. We refer to this as "spread risk" or "basis risk."
absogmEatiwish our mortgage assets and the resulting fluctuations in fair value of these securities can occur
crdepmenbefchmark interest rates and may relate to other factors impacting the mortgage and fixed
sudes matkaltsr anticipated monetary policy actions by the Fed, market liquidity, or changes in required
cifiesarftrassetorConsequently, while we use futures contracts and interest rate swaps and swaptions to
agemst mogueedentinterest rates, such instruments typically will not protect our net book value against spread
risk.

Liquidity Risk

The primary liquidity risk for us arises from financing long-term assets with shorter-term borrowings
agrdemeghstepurcessds that are pledged to secure repurchase agreements are Agency RMBS and cash. As
p02anev8thad unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $272.8 million and unpledged securities of
apiimximatéhcBBling securities pledged to us) available to meet margin calls on our repurchase agreements
eontoErisadiad for other corporate purposes. However, should the value of our Agency RMBS pledged as
vallasarhibar dherivative instruments suddenly decrease, margin calls relating to our repurchase and derivative
agubgmergase, causing an adverse change in our liquidity position. Further, there is no assurance that we
alileatevagyadye (or roll) our repurchase agreements. In addition, our counterparties have the option to
(incaegiserequinaimeutts) on the assets we pledge against repurchase agreements, thereby reducing the
boroanethagaarsban asset even if they agree to renew or roll the repurchase agreement. Significantly higher
hediessocarability to leverage our portfolio or even force us to sell assets, especially if correlated with asset
fasterdaelpamgr@nt rates on our assets.

Extension Risk

The projected weighted average life and the duration (or interest rate sensitivity) of our investments is
Mabagedsoassumptions regarding the rate at which the borrowers will prepay the underlying mortgage
I futireenerdiaats and interest rate swaps and swaptions to help manage our funding cost on our
ewerstthanisterdse rates rise. These hedging instruments allow us to reduce our funding exposure on the
trgiomahwnentrfoofa specified period of time.

However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rising interest rate environment, the average life or duration
rateodssetBxadthe fixed-rate portion of the ARMs or other assets generally extends. This could have a
nagatiseglisrpact operations, as our hedging instrument expirations are fixed and will, therefore, cover a
smalilefupeliognéapesure on our mortgage assets to the extent that their average lives increase due to slower
prepajtmnatitie. may also cause the market value of our Agency RMBS and CMOs collateralized by fixed rate
hyntigbgBMsr to decline by more than otherwise would be the case while most of our hedging instruments
aopldarenteneaveffsetting gains. In extreme situations, we may be forced to sell assets to maintain adequate
tquidityauddals to incur realized losses.

Counterparty Credit Risk

We are exposed to counterparty credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized in the
couenerpatesie our repurchase agreements and derivative contracts fail to perform their obligations under
agobements. The amount of assets we pledge as collateral in accordance with our agreements varies over
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the market value and notional amount of such assets as well as the value of our derivative contracts. In the
deéatlbbg a counterparty, we may not receive payments provided for under the terms of our agreements and
diffichigyebtaining our assets pledged as collateral under such agreements. Our credit risk related to certain
tlarigatitions is largely mitigated through daily adjustments to collateral pledged based on changes in market
lmlit@andoueaterparties to registered central clearing exchanges and major financial institutions with
esthegsablemiteditg positions with individual counterparties and adjusting collateral posted as required.
bisavanezetbareeisonts to manage counterparty credit risk will be successful and we could suffer significant
lossescissful.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report (the “evaluation date”), we carried out an evaluation,
supendeiaihend with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
BichAtisfOfficer (the “CFQO”), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
pedcedlieREe 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded
oantcdslasdrerocedures, as designed and implemented, were effective as of the evaluation date (1) in
gristmagdhatgarding the Company is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
BDEQUaBtGIBZEES, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and (2) in providing
eszswanbéethat information we must disclose in our periodic reports under the Exchange Act is recorded,
puoecessizkd and reported within the time periods prescribed by the SEC's rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
There were no significant changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that

Companyadnmiosingteeat fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
Eftecpahg’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. OTHERINFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not party to any material pending legal proceedings as described in Iltem 103 of Regulation S-K.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
A description of certainfactors thatmay affect ourfuture resultsand risk factorsis set forthin our Annual
10-KRapire grdfemded December31, 2020. As of June 30, 2021, there have been no materialchanges in our
friskfaletesset forth inour Annual Reporton Form 10-K for the yearended December31, 2020.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The table belowpresents the Company’s sharerepurchase activityfor the three months ended June 30,
2021.

Shares Purchased Maximum Number

Total Number Weighted-Average as Part of Publicly of Shares That May Yet

of Shares Price Paid Announced Be Repurchased Under

Repurchaséd Per Share Progranid the Authorizatidn

April 1, 2021 - April 30, 2021 - $ = = 837,311
May 1, 2021 - May 31, 2021 - - - 837,311
June 1, 2021 - June 30, 2021 311 5.23 - 837,311
Totals / Weighted Average 311 $ 5.23 - 837,311

(1) Includes sharesof the Company’scommon stockacquired by the Company in connectionwith the satisfactionof tax withholding
vbligatiensptoyment-relatedawards under equity incentiveplans. These repurchasesdo not reducethe number of shares
eepulatilaseperghenstadkorization.

(2) On July 29,2015, the Company'sBoard of Directorsauthorized therepurchase ofup to 2,000,000shares of the Company's
Feimmarys8o2R19the Boardof Directors approved an increasein the stock repurchase programfor up to anadditional 4,522,822
Stamgmoy thheommonstock. Unless modified orrevoked by the Board, the authorizationdoes not expire.

The Company did not have any unregisteredsales of its equity securitiesduring the three months ended
June 30, 2021.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETYDISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

10.1
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1to the
Sefpaatch Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538) filed on November
48d4Rddrporated herein by, reference).

Certificate of Correction of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s
ABpga on Form 10-K filed on February 22, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Orchid Island Capital,_Inc. (filed as Exhibit 3.1to the Company’s
BHH8AN Form 8-K filed on March 19, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference).

Specimen Certificate of common stock of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the
Sefmpaatch Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File No. 333-184538) filed on November
48d4R4drporated herein by reference).

Orchid Island Capital, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.1to the Company’s Current
BeRA®BMfiled on June 15, 2021)_t

Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to
Segtignhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of George H. Haas, 1V, Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 302 of
Brbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification of Robert E. Cauley, Chief Executive Officer and President of the Registrant, pursuant to 18
Yeztfon 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Certification of George H. Haas, 1V, Chief Financial Officer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
$estiols adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

Exhibit 101.INS XBRL Inline XBRL Instance Document — the instance document does not appear in the

Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL
document.***

Exhibit 101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document ***

Exhibit 101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document***

Exhibit 101.DEF XBRL Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document Created***
Exhibit 101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document ***

Exhibit 104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

* Filed herewith.

** Furnished herewith.

*** Submitted electronically herewith.

T Management contract or compensatory plan.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) ofthe Securities Exchange Act 0f1934, as amended, the
{RRISEBAHRSHLYFRPRA its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Orchid Island Capital, Inc
Registrant

Date: July 30, 2021 By: /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley
Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: July 30, 2021 By: /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Investment Officer and
Director (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Robert E. Cauley, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
nexessal ¥dor make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
withesdipezt to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
presenalimesiects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
peesedsed in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
gasldmfinedirefxchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
Hefthadge Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
desigmeeirvisden, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subdidimaeen i© us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being
prepared,;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
ttedigned under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
peppatiatgomdftfimancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
ounclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
veperedasedion such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
tegistgatités most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
heaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
tiormolabveporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
performming the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
fuhackiaterepasoimgbly likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report
fifenriation; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
ieghsrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 30, 2021

/s/ Robert E. Cauley

Robert E. Cauley
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and
President



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, George H. Haas, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the "registrant");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
wiadke, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial informationincluded in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
8ol the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
pnolcedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
(ap@efnged in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrantand have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused suchinternal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
ouonclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our mostrecent evaluation of internal
e9atrfihancial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.
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Date: July 30, 2021

/s/ George H. Haas, IV

George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period
¢nded0, 2021 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the ”Report™), I,
Robert E. Cauley, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906
e Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
asnended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
operations of the Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

July 30, 2021 /s/ Robert E. Cauley
Robert E. Cauley,
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (the “Company”) for the period
¢nded0, 2021 to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the ”Report™), I,
George H. Haas, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
atnended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
operations of the Company at the dates of, and for the periods covered by, the Report.

It is not intended that this statement be deemed to be filed for purposes of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

July 30, 2021 /s/ George H. Haas, IV
George H. Haas, IV
Chief Financial Officer







